CITY OF SHERIDAN

Financial and Compliance Report

For Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2013

’ e
of Sheridan citizens
LT i ! .

Effectively se‘rvicing‘?resent an -fa:lture needs
I’ *

Core Values
Build Partnerships
Contribute to Team Success
Initiate Action
Effective Communicate
Builel Trust




CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
FINANCIAL AND COMPLIANCE REPORT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30, 2013



CONTENTS

Independent Auditor’'s Rept
Management’s Discussion Analysis - Unaucted

Basic Financial Stateme!
Governmer-wide Financial Statemet
Statement of NePositior
Statement of Activitie
Fund Financial Statemel
Balance Shee Governmental Fun
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fds Balance Sheet to tStatement of NePositior
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chan Fund Balance- Governmental Fun
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Exjpera$, and Chang in Fund Balancs
of Goverrmental Funds to the Statement of Activi
Statement of NePositior - Proprietary Func
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Char Fund NelPositior - Proprietary Func
Statement of Cash Flov- Proprietary Func
Statemet of Fiduciary NeiPositior - Fiduciary Fund
Notes to Financial Statemer

Required Supplementary Informat

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes inBalamices- Budget and Actuz-
Genere Func

Schedule of Reveues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Bale- Budget and Actuz-
CapitalTax Func

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes inBalamices- Budget and Actuz-
Special Revenue Fu

Note to Required Supplementary Informén

Other Supplmentary Informatio
Combining and Individu Fund Statements and Sched
Combining Balance She- Nonmajor Governmental Fur
Combiring Statement of Revenues, Expenditures Changes in Fund Balanc- Nonmajo
Governmental Func
CombiningStatement of NePositior - NonmajorProprietar Fund:
CombiningStatement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes irBalamtes- Nonmajo
Proprietar Fund:

Single Audit Sectio
Schedule oExpenditures of Federal Awal
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federadras
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reportamgl on Compliance and Other Matt
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Perforimektcordance with
Government Auditing Standal

12

13
15

17
19
20
22
23
25
27
31
32
64
65
67

68
69

70

72

74
77

78
79

80
82

83



CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Progaaieh Report on Internal
Control Over Complianc 85
Schedule of Findings and Questioned C 87
SummarySchedie of Prior Audit Finding 89



FINANCIAL SECTION



PORTER, MUIRHEAD, CORNIA & HOWARD

(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)

MC

123 West First Street  Suite 800 P.O. Box 2750 Casper, Wyoming 82602  (307) 265-4311 Fax (307) 265-5180

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members
of the City Council
City of Sheridan, Wyoming

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statésmeh the governmental activities, the businesgtyp
activities, the aggregate discretely presented oot units, each major fund, and the aggregateingng
fund information of the City of Sheridan, Wyomirfg{ty”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2@t the
related notes to the financial statements, whidkeciively comprise the City's basic financial satents as
listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Staents

Management is responsible for the preparation aimgpfesentation of these financial statementcooaance
with accounting principles generally accepted ie tbnited States of America; this includes the degsig
implementation, and maintenance of internal conmrlavant to the preparation and fair presentatfdinancial
statements that are free from material misstatenadrgther due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thiasencial statements based on our audit. We didandit the
financial statements of the Sheridan Area Watemp§ujoint Powers Board, a discretely presented corapt
unit of the City which represents 91 percent, 8&@eat, and 99 percent, respectively, of the aseetsposition
and revenues of the aggregate discretely preseotagonent units. Those statements were auditeathsr
auditors whose report has been furnished to uspandpinion, insofar as it relates to the amoumttuded for
the Sheridan Area Water Supply Joint Powers Baaiased on the report of the other auditors. Welacted
our audit in accordance with auditing standardsegdly accepted in the United States of America tred
standards applicable to financial audits containgdovernment Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standardsresthat we plan and perform the audit to obtassomable
assurance about whether the financial statemeatse® from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtainlia evidence about the amounts and disclosurebdn
financial statements. The procedures selectedhdiepe the auditor’s judgment, including the assesdrof the
risks of material misstatement of the financiatesteents, whether due to fraud or error. In makhwage risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal caelelant to the entity’s preparation and fair preation of the
financial statements in order to design audit ploces that are appropriate in the circumstancesydduor the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectisertd the entity’s internal control. Accordinglye express

no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluatimg appropriateness of accounting policies usetithe
reasonableness of significant accounting estimatade by management, as well as evaluating the lbvera
presentation of the financial statements.



Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Sheridan, Wyoming
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisolur audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the repbritber auditors, the financial statements refeteedbove
present fairly, in all material respects, the refipe financial position of the governmental adies, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discrgtedgented component units, each major fund, andgbeegate
remaining fund information of the City of Sherid&flyoming, as of June 30, 2013, and the respectiaages
in financial position and, where applicable, cakiw$ thereof for the year then ended in accordamite

accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthbtates of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the tebhi States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparidomiation as listed in the table of contents besgnéed to
supplement the basic financial statements. Subrnration, although not a part of the basic finahci
statements, is required by the Governmental Acéogrtandards Board, who considers it to be anntiste
part of financial reporting for placing the basicaicial statements in an appropriate operati@winomic, or
historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to meamant's discussion and analysis in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the Unf¢ates of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing thenmafiton and comparing the information for consisyenc
with management’s responses to our inquiries, gsictfinancial statements, and other knowledge lteimed
during the audit of the basic financial statemem& do not express an opinion or provide any asgdr on the
information because the limited procedures do notide us with sufficient evidence to express amiop or
provide any assurance.

The budgetary comparison information is the resibiditgy of management and was derived from andtesla
directly to the underlying accounting and otherords used to prepare the basic financial statementss
information has been subjected to the auditing gufaces applied during the audit of the basic fif@nc
statements and certain additional procedures, divdjucomparing and reconciling such informatioredity to
the underlying accounting and other records usegdrépare the basic financial statements or to tEicb
financial statements themselves, and other additigmocedures in accordance with auditing standgederally
accepted in the United States of America. In qainion, this information is fairly stated in all nesial respects
in relation to the basic financial statements aale.

Other Supplementary Information and Schedule okBdjtures of Federal Awards

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formdpgnions on the financial statements that colletyiv
comprise the City of Sheridan’s basic financiatestzents. The other supplementary informationsdsdiin the
table of contents is presented for purposes oftiaddi analysis and is not a required part of thsibdfinancial
statements. Additionally, the accompanying schedefi expenditures of federal awards is presented fo
purposes of additional analysis as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-188dits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Orgaminat and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.
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The other supplementary information and schedulexpenditures of federal awards are the respoitgibil
management and were derived from and relate diremtthe underlying accounting and other record=iuse
prepare the basic financial statements. The allygplementary information and the schedule of ediperes of
federal awards have been subjected to the audiingedures applied in the audit of the basic fif@nc
statements and certain additional procedures, dimducomparing and reconciling such informatioredily to
the underlying accounting and other records usegdrépare the basic financial statements or to tsicb
financial statements themselves, and other additigmocedures in accordance with auditing standgederally
accepted in the United States of America. In quinion, the other supplementary information anddtieedule
of expenditures of federal awards are fairly statedall material respects, in relation to the bashancial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witlGovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report dated March 274,201
our consideration of the City of Sheridan’s intérnantrol over financial reporting and on our tesfsits
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regialas, contracts and grant agreements and otheersatf he
purpose of that report is to describe the scopeuoftesting of internal control over financial refiag and
compliance and the results of that testing, andtoagtrovide an opinion on internal control overadintial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an gra part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards considering the City of Sheridan’s internal tohover financial reporting
and compliance.

fidi Muiherd) oo, % o]

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants
Casper, Wyoming
March 27, 2014



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

This section of the City of Sheridan’s (“City”) ama financial report presents our discussion aradyais of the
City's financial performance during the fiscal yehat ended on June 30, 2013. Please read itnjurection
with the Auditor's Report at the front of this rep@and the City's financial statements which imnagely
follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The City's total net position increased by 3.5% .5$million) during the fiscal year. Our businegpd
activities accounted for 76% of the increase anagtgamental activities 24%.

During the fiscal year the City's state sharedrevenues increased slightly by $6,000. This i®sitiye note
compared to fiscal year's 2012 and 2011, which Hadreases of 2.6% and 3.2%, respectively. General
government expenses increased by 2.4% or nearll, 3dQ.

The City’s business-type revenues increased by 7%884,000 to nearly $13.7 million. Expenses iasesl
only by $2,000 compared to prior year.

USING THE ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of tivanagement’s Discussion and Analydise Basic Financial Statements
required supplementary informatiorand an additional section that presentsmbining statementsor
Governmental and Business Type Funds. The bamndial statements consistgdvernment-wide financial
statementsaind thefund financial statements

The government-wide financial statemeimnislude the statement of net position and theestant of activities
which provide both long-term and short-term infotioa about the overall financial status of the City

The fund financial statements are the remainingestants and focus on the individual parts of they Ci
government, presenting information in greater diétain the government-wide statements.

« The Governmental fundstatements explain how general government depatstmsuch as street
maintenance were funded in the short term and vetmaains for future spending.

» Proprietary fundsstatements offer short-term and long-term findnicitormation about the activities
the government operates like a business, sucteagater and sewer system.

« Fiduciary fundsstatements provide information about the finanaé#dtionships in which the City acts
solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit oérath

The Basic Financial Statements also includdes that explain some of the information in the finiahc
statements and provide more detailed data. Faligwie notes are thequired supplementary information
statements, which further explain and support tifierination in the basic financial statements. ddiion, we
have included a section with combining statemedrds firovide details about our non-major governmduotals
and proprietary funds.



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements help to answer tlestipn ‘Is the City better or worse off as a resiilthe
current year activities?” These statements inclitlef the City’'s assets and liabilities as wedl the current
year’'s revenues and expenses using the accrual dfaatcounting, which is similar to those usedohiyate-
sector companies.

The change imet position(the difference between total assets and liadsljtis one way to measure whether the
City's financial health is improving or deterioragi. However, when assessing the overall healtheoCity one
needs to consider additional non-financial factush as changes in the City's property tax basediton of
City roads and its water and sewer distributioriesys decisions of State Legislators concerningitigion of
certain tax revenues, as well as economic factars as inflation.

The government-wide financial statements of thg @it divided into two categories:

« Governmental Activitiegacluded here are most of the City's basic servisegh as public safety, street
maintenance, code enforcement, parks and recreatidigeneral administration. These services amlyna
financed through property taxes, sales and uss tax@eral royalties, and severance taxes.

» Business-Type ActivitiecBhe City charges fees to customers to help cowerctsts of certain services it
provides. The City's solid waste system, water sesler system, and golf course are included here.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detaifddrmation about the most significafundsused by the
City. The City is required to show detailed infation for its major funds. The City uses fund&eep track of
specific sources of funding and spending for paldicpurposes. The three funds the City usessafellaws:

- Governmental Fundbicludes most of the City's basic services, suchstasets, public safety, and
special construction projects. These statementdde a detailed short-term view of the City’s @ntr
financial resources. They focus on how cash ahdrdinancial assets flow in and out and the badanc
left at year-end that are available for spending

* Proprietary Fundsincludes services for which the City charges a $eeh as utility services. These
statements provide both long- and short-term fir@ncformation. The City’'s enterprise funds (pey
of proprietary fund) are the same as its busingss-activities, but provide more detail and addisio
information.

* Fiduciary Fundsincludes funds where the City is responsible faetsthat can be used only for their
intended purposes. These funds are reported $elyasad are not included in the City's activities
because they cannot be used to finance its opesatio



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

Financial Position

As explained, net position is the difference betwassets and liabilities. Between fiscal years228dd 2013
combined net assets increased by approximately.3.5%

CITY OF SHERIDAN'S NET POSITION

Governmental Business- Type
Activities Activities Total Total
2012 2012 2012 Percent
as Restated 2013 as Restated 2013 as Restated 2013 Change
Current & Other Assets $ 11,845,242 $ 13,488,047 $ 14,084,228 $ 15,151,307 $ 25,929,470 $ 28,639,354 10.5%
Capital Assets 70,824,412 73,717,142 79,857,626 81,896,793 150,682,038 155,613,935 3.3%

Total Assets 82,669,654 87,205,189 93,941,854 97,048,100 176,611,508 184,253,289  4.3%
Long-Term Liabilities 3,056,543 3,512,295 11,032,535 11,801,774 14,089,078 15,314,069 8.7%
Other Liabilities 2,758,060 2,672,991 1,494,946 2,504,218 4,253,006 5,177,209 21.7%

Total Liabilities 5,814,603 6,185,286 12,527,481 14,305,992 18,342,084 20,491,278  11.7%

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets,
net of Related Debt 69,432,564 71,764,130 70,110,920 71,414,607 139,543,484 143,178,737 2.6%
Restricted 390,215 766,117 - - 390,215 766,117  96.3%
Unrestricted 7,032,272 8,489,656 11,303,453 11,327,501 18,335,725 19,817,157 8.1%
Total Net Positior ~ $ 76,855,051 $81,019,903 $81,414,373 $82,742,108 $ 158,269,424 $ 163,762,011 3.5%

Unrestricted net position includes funds that hbgen reserved or designated by the City Councispercial
projects, such as capital projects and replacemesdrves. It is important to understand that Cibunc
reservations or designations are not consideréedatesl.

Net position for business-type activities increassd$1.3 million, or approximately 2%. Howevereth
resources of business-type activities cannot bd tsenake up any net asset deficiencies in the rgovental
activities. The City can generally only use thi position to fund enterprise activities such asewand sewer
operations and solid waste activities.

Results of Operations

The City’s total revenues come from numerous saurc&round 39% of the City’'s revenues come fromeoth
taxes, such as sales and use taxes and miner#tie®yaAnother 32% comes from fees charged fovises
while property tax revenue represents about 5%tef tevenues.

During fiscal year 2013, nearly 38% of the totadtoof all programs and services were expendeddpisiness
type activities or the enterprise funds. Our puldafety programs, such as the police and fireusesc
departments, accounted for 18% of the total comtsCity operations, while public works activitieshioh
include planning, engineering, code enforcementsarekts accounted for 10% of the total costs.



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

CHANGES IN CITY OF SHERIDAN'S NET POSITION

Governmental Business- Type Total
Activities Activities Total Percentage
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 Change
Program Revenues
Charges for Services $1,014,140 $ 1,056,896 $ 10,295,828 $ 10,401,346 $ 11,309,968 $ 11,458,242 1.3%
Operating Grants and Other Support 1,080,068 830,429 - - 1,080,068 830,429 (23.1)%
Capital Grants and Other Support 2,868,752 3,480,543 2,456,014 3,231,283 5,324,766 6,711,826 26.0%
General Revenues
Property Taxes 1,726,317 1,677,850 - - 1,726,317 1,677,850 (2.8)%
Special Assessments 252,800 64,585 - - 252,800 64,585 (74.5)%
Other Taxes 13,823,935 13,829,840 - - 13,823,935 13,829,840 0.0%
Miscellaneous Revenues 175,481 117,955 - - 175,481 117,955 (32.8)%
Investment Income 47,753 13,477 37,350 50,797 85,103 64,274 (24.5)%
Total Revenues 20,989,246 21,071,575 12,789,192 13,683,426 33,778,438 34,755,001 2.9%
Expenses
General Administration 1,612,698 3,890,255 - - 1,612,698 3,890,255 141.2%
Public Safety 6,615,290 5,126,000 - - 6,615,290 5,126,000 (22.5)%
Health and Welfare - 97,332 - - - 97,332 100.0%
Public Works 3,809,845 2,905,821 - - 3,809,845 2,905,821 23.7)%
Parks and Recreation 524,658 440,347 - - 524,658 440,347 (16.1)%
Interest on Long-term Debt 101,029 60,144 - - 101,029 60,144 (40.5)%
Unallocated Depreciation 4,297,745 4,852,249 - - 4,297,745 4,852,249 12.9%
Water and Sewer Fund - - 6,466,645 6,650,384 6,466,645 6,650,384 2.8%
Solid Waste Fund - - 3,318,376 3,430,051 3,318,376 3,430,051 3.4%
Golf Fund - - 610,346 569,878 610,346 569,878 (6.6)%
Nonmajor Funds - - 384,996 132,044 384,996 132,044 (65.7)%
Total Expenses 16,961,265 17,372,148 10,780,363 10,782,357 27,741,628 28,154,505 1.5%
Excess (Deficiency)
before Transfers 4,027,981 3,699,427 2,008,829 2,901,069 6,036,810 6,600,496 9.3%
Transfers (1,252,935) 465,425 1,252,935 (1,573,334) - (1,107,909) 0.0%
Increase
in Net Position $2,775046 $ 4,164,852 $ 3,261,764 $ 1,327,735 $ 6,036,810 $ 5,492,587 (9.0)%

Governmental Activities
Other taxes are the primary source of revenuethioigovernmental activities. Due to recent legjistaand other
factors the following items should be noted:

e The City’s property tax valuation decreased 2% fithm prior year and is expected to decrease sfidbil
the upcoming fiscal year.

* The cap placed on severance tax and mineral yogiitributions was still in place with no changeected
for the upcoming fiscal year. However, the Staggitlature approved additional supplemental distidins
to cities, towns and counties for fiscal years endene 30, 2010, 2011, and 2012 to alleviate thg io
funding from the cap. The City received $1,281,48@ $981,603 in supplemental distributions respelgt
for 2012 and 2013. The City has already receiied4¥,867 for fiscal year 2014. The State Legistahas
requested the supplemental distributions not bd faesalary adjustments, additional personnehordased
personnel benefits.

The cost of all governmental activities this yeaswearly $17.4 million, an increase of 2.4% frast lyear. The
City received $1 million from those who directlyrnadited from the activities. The City also recelveearly $4.3
million from other governments and organizatioret $ubsidized certain programs through grants antfibutions.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

Net Cost of City of Sheridan’s Governmental Actiet

Total Cost Net Cost (Revenues)
Of Services Percentage Of Services Percentage
2012 2013 Change 2012 2013 Change
General Aministration $ 1,612,698 $ 3,890,255 58.5% $ 9,120 $ 2,374,307 99.6%
Public Safety 6,615,290 5,126,000 (29.1)% 5,925,256 4,976,533 (19.1)%
Health and Welfare - 97,332 100.0% (2,805) 97,332 102.9%
Public Works 3,809,845 2,905,821 (31L.1)% 31,911 (94,803) 133.7%
Parks and Recreation 524,658 440,347 (19.1)% 404,205 (261,482) 254.6%
Interest on long-term debt 101,029 60,144 (68.0)% 102,279 60,144 (70.1)%
Unallocated depreciation 4,297,745 4,852,249 11.4% 3,576,749 4,852,249 26.3%
Total $ 16,961,265 $ 17,372,148 2.4% $ 10,046,715 $ 12,004,280 16.3%

The City's business-type activities are now opargatat a proper funding level, except for the Gotfuse
which requires General Fund subsidies. The inergathe General Government cost of services canlyriae
attributed to the increase in depreciation of $888,compared to prior year

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

The City’'s combined fund balance in its governmefiads at June 30, 2013 was nearly $10 millior§2a
million decrease over last year. Other items shauld be noted are as follows:

availability of the City’'s funds.

The cap on Severance tax and mineral royalty reaehy the State Legislature still remains.
The City has $766,117 that is restricted and $.8iamiin commitments as these amounts affect



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund Budget Analyses

Original Final Percentage Final Percentage
Budget Budget Change Budget Actual Change
Revenues $ 12,389,910 $ 12,375,910 (0.1)% $ 12,375,910 $ 12,181,276 (1.6)%
Expenditures
General Administration  $ 2,468,843 $ 2,859,521 15.8% $ 2,859,521 $ 2,442,549 (14.6)%
Health and Welfare 88,153 109,153 23.8% 109,153 97,332 (10.8)%
Public Safety 4,978,120 5,055,420 1.6% 5,055,420 4,933,634 2.4)%
Public Works 3,080,274 3,238,774 5.1% 3,238,774 2,818,935 (13.0)%
Parks and Recreation 419,815 419,815 0.0% 419,815 440,347 4.9%
Capital Outlay 2,138,500 4,124,400 92.9% 4,124,400 1,609,896 (61.0)%
Debt Service 96,400 96,400 0.0% 96,400 113,154 17.4%
Total $ 13,270,105 $ 15,903,483 16.6% $ 15,903,483 $ 12,455,847 (27.7)%

During the year, the City Council revised the Citydget several times. Budget amendments fall tinéo
following categories:

« Amendments and appropriations for prior year encamies and unappropriated funds are not included
in the beginning account balances.

e Bi-annual appropriation of unanticipated income.
« Transfer of appropriations to prevent budget ovesru

Taking into account these amendments and transfecijal expenditures were below final budget
appropriations.



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2013, the City has invested $155l&m(net of depreciation) in a broad range opital assets,
including police, fire equipment, buildings, parkcilities, automobiles, and water and sewer lineBhis
represents an increase of 3.2% over last year.e Metailed information concerning the City’'s calpitssets can
be found in the notes to the financial statements.

City of Sheridan’s Capital Assets

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Avities Total Total
2012 2012 Percentage
2012 2013 As Restated 2013 As Restated 2013 Change

Land $ 5772623 $ 5,772,623 $ 1,091,984 $ 1,091,984 $ 6,864,607 $ 6,864,607 0.0%
Construction

in progress 9,935,054 16,286,814 15,780,158 11,622,725 25,715,212 27,909,539 8.5%
Infrastructure 64,894,491 64,894,491 - - 64,894,491 64,894,491 100.0%
Buildings 10,731,654 10,731,654 19,814,261 19,814,261 30,545,915 30,545,915 0.0%
Improvements, other

than buildings 10,213,121 10,467,528 68,113,528 77,369,648 78,326,649 87,837,176 12.1%
Machinery and

equipment 11,510,560 12,398,425 11,346,341 12,016,614 22,856,901 24,415,039 6.8%

Total $113,057,503 $ 120,551,535 $ 116,146,272 $ 121,915,232 $ 229,203,775 $ 242,466,767 5.8%

This year’'s major capital asset additions incluBedoks/Smith Street, NW Tank & Transmission MailG\BTP
Clearwell Tank & Piping, side load trash truck|laoffltruck, grinder, excavator, golf carts, forkliktreet sweeper,
utilities work trucks, patrol vehicles, tractor,napaction roller, and sculptures.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt

City of Sheridan’s Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Avities Total Percent
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 Change
Special Assessment
Bonds $ 1,065,000 $ 1,615,000 $ - $ - $ 1,065000 $ 1,615,000 51.6%
Capital Leases 382,366 336,107 1,884,987 2,242,276 2,267,353 2,578,383 13.7%
SLIB Loans - 1,905 7,861,719 8,239,910 7,861,719 8,241,815 4.8%
Repayment of sales tax 759,332 645,432 - - 759,332 645,432 100.0%
Other 905,363 913,851 1,285,829 1,319,588 2,191,192 2,233,439 1.9%
Total $3,112,061 $3,512,295 $11,032,535 $11,801,774 $14,144,596 $ 15,314,069 8.3%

At year end the City had $15.3 million in bonds awadles outstanding, an increase of 8.3% or nedrly illion
from last year. More detailed information can berfd in the notes to the financial statements.

Other outstanding long-term debt consists of actrcempensated absences due employees. In addhien,
landfill closure and post closure liability is inded in other business-type activities.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
June 30, 2013
(Unaudited)

FUTURE OF THE CITY

Property tax revenues will continue to remain sgeaddecrease as a result of decreased valuations
relative to the economy.

Through State Legislation, severance tax and nlineyalty revenues continue to be capped.

The State Legislation did however approve throughsupplemental budget a distribution of $1.4
million, which the City received in August of 2014, help alleviate the effect of capping the seneea
tax and mineral royalty revenues. For fiscal y2ad4, the State Legislature has requested the
supplemental distributions not be used for saladjusiments, additional personnel or increased
personnel benefits. The State Legislation has abpgwoved for the through its supplemental budget f
fiscal year 15 and fiscal year 16 a distributior$df9 million in each year. This increase is chee ity
qualifying for $445,000 of Hardship funds each yedris designation is the first time the City of
Sheridan will receive hardship funds as the Shardaconomic recovery and thus the sales/use tax
collections trail other communities and the Stdté/goming as a whole.

Sheridan County voters previously voted to extéral cent Capital Facilities Tax in August of 2009,
which is estimated to end fiscal year 2014. VoiardNovember 2013 reapproved the tax with the
expectation of the tax continuing for an additiorglht years using current collections as estimates
This will enable the City to continue working oa €apital Improvement Plan.

These factors will have a dramatic effect on thg/'€iactivities and were taken into account when
adopting the general fund budget for 2014.

State Legislative efforts to “fully fund” pensiofar all public employees, especially Fire Plan Aaiid
Civilian pensions, continue to be a concern arduhknown full impacts of the federal Affordable
Health Care act are reasons city officials are id@nsg increases to reserves.

Current projects of the City are the continuatiénhe Pathway Projects, Lewis Street Bridge andhay,
Street overlay program, Service Center upgradesst WWewntown, Wyoming/Park Street, South Side
Sewer, High Tech Business Park, North Main Street laterchange, NW Water Loop, Water Treatment
Plant upgrades, WYO Theatre, Sheridan Commergidl Landfill Cell 9.

Requests for Information

The financial report is designed to provide a gaheverview of the City of Sheridan, Wyoming's ftas for
all those with an interest in the government'srfoes. Questions concerning any of the informapimvided in
this report or requests for additional financidbimation, including separately issued reportstfa Sheridan
Area Water Supply and the Sheridan Economic and¢&thnal Development Authority, should be addressed
the Office of the Treasurer, 55 Grinnell Plaza,ri8laen, WY 82801.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2013

Primary Government

Government: Business-typ
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $10,218,195 $ 8,529,478 $ 18,747,673
Accounts receivable, r 256,076 1,637,872 1,893,948
Special assessments receivable 1,306,370 - 1,306,370
Investment 16,046 78,332 94,378
Due from other governmel 1,548,167 1,281,510 2,829,677
Due from component ut - 3,313,266 3,313,266
Due from primary governme - - -
Inventory - 47,371 47,371
Prepaid expen: 16,545 - 16,545
Restricted cas 126,648 263,478 390,126
Real estate held for si - - -
Note receivable - long-tel - - -
Capital assets not being depreci 22,059,437 12,714,709 34,774,146
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreci 51,657,705 69,182,084 120,839,789
Total asse 87,205,189 97,048,100 184,253,289
LIABILITIES
Outstanding checks
excess of bank balar - 201,902 201,902
Accounts payab 2,403,864 1,370,985 3,774,849
Accrued liabilitie: 269,127 136,282 405,409
Accrued interest payat - 157,512 157,512
Deposits due othe - 115,518 115,518
Due to other governmet - - -
Due to primary governme - - -
Due to component ut - 522,019 522,019
Long-term liabilitie:
Due within one ye: 940,290 1,656,314 2,596,604
Due in more than one ye 2,572,005 10,145,460 12,717,465
Total liabilities 6,185,286 14,305,992 20,491,278
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related 71,764,130 71,414,607 143,178,737
Restricted fc
Debt servic 766,117 - 766,117
Sheridan Area Water Supj - - -
Unrestricte: 8,489,656 11,327,501 19,817,157
Total net positio $81,019,903 $82,742,108 $163,762,011

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Component Units

Sheridan Economit
and Educatione

Sheridan Are Developmer

Water Suppl Authority Total
$ 2,009,852 $ 110,843 $ 2,120,695
137,056 - 137,056
522,019 - 522,019
6,599,725 - 6,599,725
- 1,018,922 1,018,922
1,366,439 - 1,366,439
127,603 426,500 554,103
30,964,370 2,797,846 33,762,216
41,727,064 4,354,111 46,081,175
- 25,260 25,260
82,850 - 82,850
- 1,394 1,394
3,313,266 - 3,313,266
228,188 - 228,188
4,235,301 - 4,235,301
7,859,605 26,654 7,886,259
26,628,484 3,224,346 29,852,830
2,157,720 - 2,157,720
5,081,255 1,103,111 6,184,366
$33,867,459 $ 4,327,457 $ 38,194,916




CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Daoitivns
Primary government
Governmental activities
General administration $ 3,890,255 $ 1,056,896 $ - $ 459,052
Health and welfare 97,332 - - -
Public safety 5,126,000 - - 149,467
Public works 2,905,821 - 783,736 2,216,888
Parks and recreation 440,347 - 46,693 655,136
Interest on long-term debt 60,144 - - -
Unallocated depreciation 4,852,249 - - -
Total governmental activities 17,372,148 1,056,896 830,429 3,480,543
Business-type activities
Solid waste fund 3,430,051 4,171,047 - -
Water and sewer fund 6,650,384 5,728,027 - 3,231,283
Golf fund 569,878 351,495 - -
Nonmajor funds 132,044 150,777 - -
Total business-type activities 10,782,357 10,401,346 - 3,231,283
Total primary government $ 28,154,505 $ 11,458,242 $ 830,429 $ 6,711,826
Component units
Sheridan Area Water Supply $ 1,658,430 $ 1,430,745 $ - $ 950,530
Sheridan Economic and Educational
Development Authority 117,234 - - -
Total component units $ 1,775,664 $ 1,430,745 $ - $ 950,530
General revenues
Taxes

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Special assessments, levied for debt service
Sales, severance, royalties, cigarette, gasolsetaxes

Franchise taxes
Miscellaneous revenues
Rental income
Net investment income
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of year, as previouslyared

Prior period adjustment

Net position - beginning of year, as restated

Net position - end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government Component Units

Sheridan
Economic and
Educational
Governmental Business-type Sheridan Area Development
Activities Activities Total Water Supply Authority Total
$ (2,374,307) $ - $ (2,374,307) $ - $ - $ -
(97,332) - (97,332) - - -
(4,976,533) - (4,976,533) - - -
94,803 - 94,803 - - -
261,482 - 261,482 - - -
(60,144) - (60,144) - - -
(4,852,249) - (4,852,249) - - -
(12,004,280) - (12,004,280) - - -
- 740,996 740,996 - - -
- 2,308,926 2,308,926 - - -
- (218,383) (218,383) - - -
- 18,733 18,733 - - -
- 2,850,272 2,850,272 - - -
(12,004,280) 2,850,272 (9,154,008) - - -
- - - 722,845 - 722,845
- - - - (117,234) (117,234)
- - - 722,845 (117,234) 605,611
1,677,850 - 1,677,850 - - -
64,585 - 64,585 - - -
13,000,107 - 13,000,107 - - -
829,733 - 829,733 - - -
117,955 - 117,955 - - -
- - - - 14,400 14,400
13,477 50,797 64,274 41,095 12 41,107
465,425 (1,573,334) (1,107,909) 1,107,909 - 1,107,909
16,169,132 (1,522,537) 14,646,595 1,149,004 14,412 1,163,416
4,164,852 1,327,735 5,492,587 1,871,849 (102,822) 1,769,027
76,930,204 89,830,813 166,761,017 31,339,704 4,430,279 35,769,983
(75,153) (8,416,440) (8,491,593) 655,906 - 655,906
76,855,051 81,414,373 158,269,424 31,995,610 4,430,279 36,425,889
81,019,903 $ 82,742,108 $ 163,762,011 $ 33,867,459 $ 4,327,457 $ 38,194,916
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

BALANCE SHEET -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2013

Debt Capita Capita
Genere Service Tax Projects
ASSETS Func Func Func Func
Cash and cash equivale $ 6,040,311 $ 765945 $ 1,160,153 -
Investment 16,046 - - -
Accounts receivable, r 144,675 - - -
Special assessme
receivable, ni - 1,306,370 - -
Due from other governmel 660,599 - - -
Restricted cas 126,648 - - -
Prepaid expen: 15,380 - - -
Total asse $ 7,003,659 $ 2,072,315 $ 1,160,153 -
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payab $ 932243 % - $ 540 -
Accrued liabilitie: 261,359 - - -
Total liabilities 1,193,602 - 540 -
Deferred inflows of resourc
Deferred revent - 1,306,198 - -
Total deferred inflow
of resource - 1,306,198 - -
Fund balance
Nonspendable - relate
prepaid expen: 15,380 - - -
Restricted for debt servi - 766,117 - -
Committec 1,472,929 - - -
Unassigne 4,321,748 - 1,159,613 -
Total fund balance 5,810,057 766,117 1,159,613 -
Total liabilities, deferred inflown
of resources and ful
balance $ 7,003,659 $ 2,072,315 $ 1,160,153 -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Other

Specia Nonmajo
Revenu Government:
Func Fund: Total
$ 2,251,786 $ - $10,218,195
- - 16,046
111,401 - 256,076
- - 1,306,370
887,568 - 1,548,167
- - 126,648
1,165 - 16,545
$ 3,251,920 % - $13,488,047
$ 1,471,081 $ - $ 2,403,864
7,768 - 269,127
1,478,849 - 2,672,991
- - 1,306,198
- - 1,306,198
1,165 - -
- - 766,117
- - 1,472,929
1,771,906 - 7,253,267
1,773,071 - 9,508,858
$ 3,251,920 $ - $13,488,047




CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHET TO

THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2013

Total fund balances - governmental fu

Amounts reported for governmental activities in sketement of n
position are different becau

Capital assets used in governmental activitiesiatdinancial resourci
and, therefore, are not reported in the fu

Other long-term assets are not available to pagdaent-period expenditut
and, therefore, are deferred in the fur

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, aredwst and payak
in the current period, and therefore, are not reyoboin the fund:
Capital lease
Repayment of sales
Notes payab
Compensated absen
Special assessment bo

Net position of governmental activit

$ 9,508,858

73,717,142

1,306,198
(336,107)
(645,432)
(1,905)
(913,851)

(1,615,000) (3,512,295)

$ 81,019,903

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES FRUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Debi Capita
Geners Service Tax
Func Func Func
Revenue
Taxe: 10,718,419 $ - $ 2,769,871
Licenses and perm 793,023 - -
Intergovernment; 3,809 - -
Special assessme - 490,577 -
Fines and forfeiture 207,689 - -
Charges for servic 371,647 - -
Net investment incon 12,673 - -
Contribution: 36,698 - -
Miscellaneous revenu 37,318 - -
Total revenue 12,181,276 490,577 2,769,871
Expenditure
Curren
General administratic 2,442 549 - -
Health and welfai 97,332 - -
Public safet 4,933,634 - -
Public work: 2,818,935 1,110 43,478
Parks and recreati 440,347 - -
Capital outla 1,609,896 - 3,079,724
Debt service - principe 101,775 90,000 -
interes 11,379 48,765 -
Total expenditure 12,455,847 139,875 3,123,202
Excess (deficiency) of revenu
over (under) expenditur (274,571) 350,702 (353,331)
Other financing sources (us
Capital transfel (62,243) - -
Operating transfers 838,721 25,200 -
Operating transfers ¢ (487,548) - -
Total other financing sources (us 288,930 25,200 -
Net change in fund balanc 14,359 375,902 (353,331)
Fund balances - beginning of ye
as previously reportt 5,870,851 390,21! 1,512,944
Prior period adjustme (75,153) - -
Fund balances (deficits) - beginning of ye
as restate 5,795,69 390,21! 1,512,944
Fund balances - end of y. $ 5,810,057 $ 766,117 $ 1,159,613

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Capita Special Other Nonmajor
Projects Revenu Governmentz
Func Func Fund: Total
- $ 2,019,400 $ - $ 15,507,690
- - - 793,023
- 3,082,944 - 3,086,753
- - - 490,577
- - - 207,689
- - - 371,647
- 804 - 13,477
- 872,059 - 908,757
(95) 80,732 - 117,955
(95) 6,055,939 - 21,497,568
- 530,224 - 2,972,773
- - - 97,332
- 192,366 - 5,126,000
- 42,298 - 2,905,821
- - - 440,347
- 3,882,374 - 8,571,994
- - - 191,775
- - - 60,144
- 4,647,262 - 20,366,186
(95) 1,408,677 - 1,131,382
369,780 290,06! (582,879) 14,726
- 74,326 - 938,247
- - - (487,548)
369,780 364,394 (582,879) 465,425
369,685 1,773,071 (582,879) 1,596,807
(369,685) - 582,87! 7,987,204
- - - (75,153)
(369,685) - 582,87! 7,912,05
- $ 1,773,071 $ - $ 9,508,858
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Change in fund balances as reported in the govenaiieind stateme $ 1,596,807
Amounts reported for governmental activities in stetement
of activities are different becau
Governmental funds report capital outlays as exieras. However
in the statement of activities, the cost of thosgets is allocate
over their estimated useful lives and reportedegsetiation expens
Capital asset additio $ 7,614,308
Depreciatiol (4,852,249) 2,762,05
The transfer of business-type capital leases temworental activitie (55,518)
The issuance of long-term debt provides currerarfaial resource
to governmental funds, while these amounts aredefend the
amortized in the statement of activit
Issuance of Special Improvement District 78 assers (640,000)
Issuance of Clean Water State Revolving fund (1,905) (641,905)
Certain revenues are not recognized as curremdiabresources ar
therefore, are not reported as revenues in goveranends.
Current year deferred rever 1,306,198
Prior year deferred rever (1,092,191) 214,00
The repayment of principal on long-term debt conssigurrent financi
resources of governmental funds while it is nobgetzed as ¢
expense in the statement of activi 203,900
The repayment of principal on capital leases comsucarrent financi
resources of governmental funds while it is nobgetzed as ¢
expense in the statement of activit 101,77
Some expenses reported in the statement of aesvith not requi
the use of current financial resources and, thezefire not reported
expenditures in governmental fur
Accrued compensated absences - curren -
Accrued compensated absences - prior (7,787)
Compensated absences - current (913,851)
Compensated absences - prior: 905,363 (16,275)
Change in net position of governmental activ $ 4,164,852

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2013

ASSETS
Current asse
Cash and cash equivale
Service receivables, 1
Investment
Due from other governmel
Due from component ut
Inventory
Restricted cas

Total current asse

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreci
Total asse

LIABILITIES
Current liabilitie:
Outstanding checks

excess of bank balar
Accounts payab
Accrued liabilitie:
Accrued interest payat
Due to component ul
Deposits due to othe
Compensated absences payable, current p
Current portion of capital leases pay:
Current portion of notes paya

Total current liabilitie

Long-term liabilitie:
Landfill closure liability
Notes payab
Compensated absences pay
Capital leases payal

Total long-term liabilitie

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related
Unrestricte

Total net positio

Solid Water an
Waste Sewe Golf
Func Func Func
$ 4,277,726 4,114,762 -
543,164 1,069,845 21,760
20,474 57,858 -
360,000 881,596 -
- 3,313,266 -
- 47,371 -
73,772 6,358 183,348
5,275,136 9,491,056 205,108
7,018,855 73,643,648 1,198,214
12,293,991 83,134,704 1,403,322

- - 201,902

509,094 858,010 3,018
51,211 85,071 -
56,295 63,182 38,035

- 522,019 -

- 115,518 -
108,182 205,842 -
512,154 3,536 72,280
328,264 426,056 -

1,565,200 2,279,234 315,235
966,896 - -
1,759,329 5,726,261 -
3,833 34,835 -

780,098 11,563 862,645

3,510,156 5,772,659 862,645

3,639,010 67,476,232 263,289

3,579,625 7,606,579 (37,847)

$ 7,218,635 75,082,811 225,442

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Nonmajo
Fund:

Totals

$

136,990
3,103

39,914

8,529,478
1,637,872
78,332
1,281,510
3,313,266
47,371
263,478

180,007

15,151,307

36,076

81,896,793

216,083

97,048,100

201,902
1,370,985
136,282
157,512
522,019
115,518
314,024
587,970
754,320

4,160,532

966,896
7,485,590
38,668
1,654,306

10,145,460

36,076
179,144

71,414,607
11,327,501

$

215,220

82,742,108
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Operating revenu
Service fee
Other operating reven
Total operating revenu

Operating expens
Salaries and benet
Other operating expen:
Landfill closure cos
Depreciation expen
Total operating expens

Operating income (los

Nonoperating revenues (expen:
Net investment incon
Interest expen:
Gain on disposal of ass
Total nonoperating revenues (expen

Income (loss) before contributions
transfer

Other financing sources (us
Grants and contributio
Capital transfel
Operating transfers
Operating transfers ¢
Total other financing sources (us

Change in net positic

Net position - beginning of yee
as previously reportt

Prior period adjustme

Net position - beginning of year, as rest

Net position - end of ye

Solid Water an
Waste Sewe Golf
Func Func Func
$ 4,170,481 5,728,027 $ 347,495
566 - 4,000
4,171,047 5,728,027 351,495
1,386,136 2,229,135 -
1,162,330 1,819,455 404,069
27,316 - -
783,891 2,467,506 182,584
3,359,673 6,516,096 586,653
811,374 (788,069) (235,158)
8,589 39,077 3,131
(70,378) (134,288) (42,968)
- - 59,743
(61,789) (95,211) 19,906
749,585 (883,280) (215,252)
- 3,231,283 -
- (52,189) -
228,929 2,086,316 122,347
(309,238) (3,671,852) (11,510)
(80,309) 1,593,558 110,837
669,276 710,278 (104,415)
6,469,311 82,869,021 329,857
80,048 (8,496,488) -
6,549,359 74,372,533 329,857
$ 7,218,635 75,082,811 $ 225,442

See accompanying notes to the financial statements



Nonmajo

Fund: Totals
$ 18,782 10,264,785
131,995 136,561
150,777 10,401,346
- 3,615,271
129,925 3,515,779
- 27,316
2,119 3,436,100
132,044 10,594,466
18,733 (193,120)
- 50,797
- (247,634)
- 59,743
- (137,094)
18,733 (330,214)
- 3,231,283
37,463 (14,726)
- 2,437,592
(3,600) (3,996,200)
33,863 1,657,949
52,596 1,327,735
162,62: 89,830,81
- (8,416,440)
162,624 81,414,373
$ 215,220 82,742,108
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNI
Year Ended June 30, 2(C

Cash Flows from Operating Activiti
Receipts from customers and us:
Payments to supplie
Payments to employe

Net cash provided by operating activi

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activit

Capital transfel

Operating transfers

Operating transfers ¢

Cash transfers to general fi

Outstanding checks in excess of bank bal
Net cash provided by (used in) nonca)

financing activitie

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Atotis
Capital grants from federal and state sot
Acquisition of notes payable and capital le:
Principal payments on notes payable to the C

of State Land and Investme
Principal payments on capital lea
Interest paid on capital de
Purchases of property and equipn
Net cash used in capital and rela
financing activitie

Cash Flows from Investing Activiti
Proceeds from the sale of investm
Interest receive

Net cash provided by investing activit

Net increase (decrease) in cash
cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of
Cash and cash equivalents - end of

Reported in the following captio
Cash and cash equivale
Restricted cas

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fu

Solid Water anc
Waste Sewe Golf
Func Func Func
$ 3,957,773 $ 5,290,158 $ 352,991
(873,358) (1,136,645) (323,002)
(1,351,597) (2,191,041) -
1,732,818 1,962,472 29,989
- (52,189) -
228,929 2,086,316 122,347
(309,238) (3,671,852) (11,510)
- - 37,885
(80,309) (1,637,725) 148,722
- 3,058,404 -
792,343 1,000,900 184,477
(320,243) (302,467) -
(363,095) (3,413) (197,506)
(87,608) (97,549) (48,452)
(1,195,094) (4,223,568) (127,531)
(1,173,697) (567,693) (189,012)
11,692 6,438 R
8,589 39,077 3,131
20,281 45 515 3,131
499,093 (197,431) (7,170)
3,852,405 4,318,551 190,518
$ 4,351,498 $ 4,121,120 $ 183,348
4,277,726 4,114,762 -
73,772 6,358 183,348
$ 4,351,498 $ 4,121,120 $ 183,348

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Nonmajo
Fund: Totals

$ 153420 $ 9,754,342
(132,932) (2,465,937)
(3,542,638)

20,488 3,745,767

- (52,189)
- 2,437,592

(3,600) (3,996,200)
(21,689) (21,689)
- 37,885

(25,289) (1,594,601)

- 3,058,404
- 1,977,720

- (622,710)
- (564,014)
- (233,609)
- (5,546,193)

- (1,930,402)

- 18,130
- 50,797

- 68,927

(4,801) 289,691
141,791 8,503,265

$ 136,990 $ 8,792,956

136,990 8,529,478
- 263,478

$ 136,990 $ 8,792,956

“(Continued



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONTUED)
Year Ended June 30, 2C

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Fu

Solid Water anc
Waste Sewe Golf
Func Func Func

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
cash provided by operating activi
Operating income (los $ 811,374 $ (788,069) $ (235,158)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (l¢
to cash provided by (used in) operating activ
Depreciation expen 783,891 2,467,506 182,584
Increase (decrease) in cash as a result of ch
in operating assets and liabilit

Service receivables, 1 15,599 168,938 1,496
Due from other func - 156 -
Due from other governmel 56 - -
Due from component ui - (585,836) -
Inventory - (990) -
Prepaid expens 10,354 46,611 87,543
Accounts payab 278,618 115,170 (6,476)
Accrued liabilitie: 26,228 39,962 -
Due to other func (228,929) (19,684) -
Due to component un - 522,019 -
Deposits due to othe - (1,443) -
Net cash provided by operati
activities $ 1,732,818 $ 1,962,472 $ 29,989

Noncash investing, capital and related finan

activities
Capital assets transferred to governmental 1 $ - $ - $ -
Capital leases transferred to governmental $ - $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Nonmajo

Fund: Totals

$ 18,733 $ (193,120)
2,119 3,436,100

(163) 185,870

. 156

2,806 2,862
- (585,836)

- (990)

148 144,656

(3,155) 384,157

- 66,190
- (248,613)

- 522,019
- (1,443)

$ 20,488 $ 3,745,767
$ 130,670 $ 130,670
$ 55,517 $ 55,517
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION -
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 2013

Agency Funds

Wyoming
Court
Crime Automation
Victims Fees
ASSETS Fund Fund Total
Cash $ 615 $ 2,975 $ 3,590
Total assets $ 615 $ 2,975 $ 3,590
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 325 $ 1,507 $ 1,832
Due to other governments 290 1,468 1,758
Total liabilities $ 615 $ 2,975 $ 3,590

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. The Reporting Entity and Significant Accounting Polcies

Reporting Entity

The City of Sheridan (City) is a municipal corp@vatgoverned by an elected mayor and six-membenabu
As required by accounting principles generally ated in the United States of America, these firanci
statements include all of the governmental acisiaind business-type activities relevant to theadipas of the
City. The accompanying financial statements of @igy are to include those separately administered
organizations for which the elected officials oét@ity are financially accountable or those thawduld be
misleading to exclude. Financial accountabilitgétermined based on the appointment of a votingnibaof

the governing board and, either the City's abildyimpose its will, or the presence of a potentilahncial
benefit or burden to the City. The City has deiegd that the following outside agencies meet theva
criteria and, therefore, have been included as oot units in the City's basic financial stateraent

Discretely Presented Component Unit§he component units’ columns in the governmemtewfinancial
statements present the financial data of the Ciigsretely presented component units. They grerted in
separate columns to emphasize that they are legapprate from the City. Both of the componentsuni
described below issue their own financial statesent

1. TheSheridan Area Water Supply Joint Powers BogB&AWS) was created under Wyoming Statutes
816-1-101 through 16-1-109 under agreements wihQity and Sheridan County. It is jointly funded
by both governments for the purpose of providingewto Sheridan area residents, including the Gount
and City governments. The Board consists of simbmrs: three Sheridan County Commissioners, the
City Mayor, and two City Council Members. The dssef the Sheridan Area Water Supply Joint
Powers Board will revert to the City when all délaks been repaid or should the Joint Powers Board be
dissolved. Complete financial statements for therfdan Area Water Supply can be obtained from its
administrative office in Sheridan, Wyoming.

2. TheSheridan Economic and Educational Development Aiiythdoint Powers Board (SEEDAYas
created to foster collaboration in construction apkration of facilities and programs furthering
educational and economic development of Sheridamtyo The governing board of this component
unit is appointed collectively by the City, NortheVyoming Community College, and Sheridan County
School District 2. The assets of the Joint Povoard will revert to the City should SEEDA be
dissolved. Complete financial statements for therilan Economic and Education Development
Authority Joint Powers Board can be obtained frdra City of Sheridan administrative office in
Sheridan, Wyoming.

Nature of Operations

The City provides a broad range of services taaits, including general government, public safstigets,
sanitation, health, cultural, social services, gagk facilities. It also operates water, sewer anditation
utilities, an emergency response system, and daeeraational facilities.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., dtatement of net position and the statement dfites)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary adties of the primary government. For the most piéue effect
of interfund activity has been removed from thesdgesnents. Governmental activities, which normaltg
supported by taxes and intergovernmental reverueseported separately from business-type aetbyitivhich
rely to a significant extent on fees and chargestipport.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. The Reporting Entity and Significant Accouting Policies (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Ciomted)

The statement of activities demonstrates the deigrednich the direct expenses of a given functiosegment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expengethase that are clearly identifiable with a spediinction or
segment. Indirect expenses such as depreciatidninderest are allocated to specific functions wiiteis
practicable. Program revenues include 1) chargesustomers or applicants who purchase, use, ecttir
benefit from goods, services, or privileges prodidey a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting therafional or capital requirements of a particulamnction or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly imdwmmong program revenues are reported insteaehasal
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for mowental funds and proprietary funds. Major indixél
governmental funds and major individual enterpfisels are reported as separate columns in thefiancial
statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and FinaatBtatement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are redousing the economic resources measurement focls a
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the ptapyidund and fiduciary fund financial statemenfRevenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are reashdeda liability is incurred, regardless of theitighof
related cash flows. Property taxes are recograzetvenues in the year for which they are leviédants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soail &bigibility requirements imposed by the provideave
been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are repantadg the current financial resources measureffioenis
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Rege are recognized as soon as they are both rabbsand
available. Revenues are considered to be availelda they are collectible within the current pdrir soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the curreatiod. For this purpose, the government consid®renues to
be available if they are collected within 60 dafshe end of the current fiscal period. Expenditugenerally
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as undecrual accounting. However, expenditures reldted
compensated absences and claims and judgmentecarded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, andesttassociated with the current fiscal periodadireonsidered
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been mizeatyas revenues of the current fiscal period.ly Ghre
portion of special assessments receivable duennttd current fiscal period is considered to beeaptble to
accrual as revenue of the current period. All ptegenue items are considered to be measurabla\aiidble
only when cash is received by the government.

The accounts of the City are organized on the klEdisnds and account groups, each of which isidensd a
separate accounting entity. The operations of &anth are accounted for with a separate set oftsgtncing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,dfiaquity, revenues, and expenditures, or expenses,
appropriate. Government resources are allocateshdoaccounted for in the individual funds basednughe
purposes for which they are to be spent and thes@awhich spending activities are controlled.

The government reports the following major governtakfunds:

The general fundis the government’s primary operating fund. Ilt@mts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to beuated for in another fund.

Thedebt service fundccounts for resources accumulated to pay spessalssment debt.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. The Reporting Entity and Significant Accouting Policies (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Ciomted)

The capital tax fundis a special revenue fund which accounts for gsources collected through the capital
facilities tax and the expenditures of those funds.

The capital projects fundis a capital projects fund which accounts for tlesources collected and the
expenditures made on capital projects. This fuad tansferred to the special revenue fund aslpfl]i2012
due to the change in accounting policy and capitaisfers. In the current year, the capital pitsjfend did not
meet the criteria to be reported as a major fuigince it is management’s intention that this wobel a
significant fund in the future, it has been repdiseparately for consistency with prior and futyegars.

Thespecial revenue funid used to account for proceeds from specificmaeesources, which are required to be
accounted for separately and used for specificqaen

The government reports the following major protgtfunds:

The solid waste fundaccounts for revenue and expenses of the depdrtrasponsible for maintaining a
dependable system for collecting and disposinglid svaste material in the City.

The water and sewer fundccounts for revenue and expenses of the depadmesponsible for providing a
safe, potable water supply adequate for fire ptimec domestic and industrial usage and maintairang
dependable system for collecting and treating weester in the City.

The golf fundaccounts for revenue and expenses associatedheittperation and maintenance of the Sheridan
Municipal Golf Course. In the current year, thdfdond did not meet the criteria to be reportedaasajor
fund. Since it is management’s intention that thisild be a significant fund in the future, it Heesen reported
separately for consistency with prior and futurarge

Additionally, the government reports the followifund types:

Theagency fundsre used to account for the funds that are colleatebehalf of other entities that have not yet
been remitted. They are custodial in nature (assgtal liabilities) and do not involve measuren@mntesults
of operations.

Effective this reporting period is GASB Statemermt. 82, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASBAGPA Pronouncemen{(&ASB 62). This statement
brings the authoritative accounting and finanoégdarting literature for state and local governmeatgther in

a single source, with the FASB and AICPA guidancedified as necessary to appropriately recognize the
governmental environment and the needs of govertahtimancial statement users. GASB No. 62 wifiui in

a more consistent application of applicable guidaimcfinancial statements of state and local gavemts.
This statement also supersedes GASB Statementéc2ounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and other Governmental Entities That Use Retgry Fund Accountingthereby eliminating the election
provided in that Statement for enterprise funds bsiness-type activities to apply post-November 13B9
FASB Statements and Interpretations that do noflicomwith or contradict GASB pronouncements. Hawg
those entities can continue to apply, as other watdowry literature, post-November 30, 1989 FASB
pronouncements that do not conflict with or conth@ASB pronouncements, including this Statement.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activitgs been eliminated from the government-wide fir@nc
statements. Exceptions to this general rule aggnpats-in-lieu of taxes and other charges betwden t
government’s water and sewer function and varigherofunctions of the government. Elimination bése
charges would distort the direct costs and progeranues reported for the various functions coreskrn
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. The Reporting Entity and Significant Accouting Policies (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Ciomted)

Amounts reported as program revenues include ligebato customers or applicants for goods, servimes
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and cbotions, and 3) capital grants and contributionsjuiding
special assessments. Internally dedicated resbuanee reported as general revenues rather thanogeam
revenues. Likewise, general revenues includesdig.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenuesd expenses from nonoperating items. Operatingnueas
and expenses generally result from providing ses/&nd producing and delivering goods in connedtiitim a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operationsheTprincipal operating revenues of the water, ses@id
waste and golf enterprise funds are charges tomgsts for sales and services. The City also rézegras
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intenidedecover the cost of connecting new customerthéo
system. Operating expenses for enterprise fundsimternal service funds include the cost of saled
services, administrative expenses, and depreciationapital assets. All revenues and expensesaeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating reesrand expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The amounts shown on the balance sheet as castaahdquivalents represent cash on deposit in haitks
original maturities of three months or less, antfypgash. Money market funds held by any investnpaol or
included in any brokerage account are not congidessh equivalents, since these holdings are nhyrmal
temporary in nature. The City’s intent is to raint/these proceeds in other investments.

Restricted Cash

Under the terms of various capital lease financitigs City receives escrowed funds before constrnaotir
purchases are complete. Funds that have not lxpended to date are shown as restricted cash thiagenay
only be used for the assets financed by the agmgteme

Investments

State statutes authorize the types of investmantahich the City may invest. Among these authatize
investments are certificates of deposit, money stdtknds, commercial paper, obligations of the Ui@asury,
agencies and instrumentalities of the U.S. Govemimeortgage backed securities, guaranteed investme
contracts, mutual funds and repurchase agreeméiitdanks with the underlying securities being ghtions

of the U.S. Treasury or agencies and instrumei@alidf the U.S. Government.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representativeeofding/borrowing arrangements outstanding at tlieaéithe
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/frother funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfufoans) or
“advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-cotngortion of interfund loans). All other outstamgl balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from othaddlf Any residual balances outstanding between th
governmental activities and business-type actwitiee reported in the government-wide financigkstents as
“internal balances.”

Any advances between funds reported in the funanfifal statements, are offset by a fund balancerves
account in applicable governmental funds to in@idatat they are not available for appropriation ang not
expendable available financial resources.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. The Reporting Entity and Significant Accouting Policies (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Ciomted)

Receivables and Payables (Continued)

All trade, utility, and property tax receivablese &hown net of an allowance for uncollectible acds. Trade
accounts receivable in excess of 180 days comphesdrade accounts receivable allowance for unctiblie.
The unbilled usage receivable represents theiegiliservices that have been provided, but naedils of the
end of the year.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien gmeptyas of July 1. The 2013 property taxes weveetl as of
July 1, 2012 and were due in two installments. tallments are due on September 1 and March 1 and ar
collectible on November 10 and May 10. If theffirsstallment payment is made after November 1€ efhtire
amount is due by December 31. Delinquent taxes baen recognized as revenue to the extent theylieen
collected within 60 days after June 30, 2013. Prigptaxes receivable are included in “due fromeoth
governments” in the accompanying balance sheeipety taxes are assessed, billed, collected, siibdted

by the Sheridan County Treasurer’s and Assessdiices. Governmental funds report deferred reveinue
connection with property tax receivables for revenuhat are not considered to be available to dafei
liabilities of the current period.

Prepaid Items

Prepaid items represent payments made to vendoeefaices that will benefit periods beyond June Zil 3
and are recorded as prepaid expenses in entefynide or prepaid expenditures in governmental funds

Inventories

Water and Sewer Fund inventories are carried atldher of cost or market (first-in, first-out methjo
Inventories of the governmental fund types are ndmth as expenditures when purchased. Reportedtomies
of the general fund are equally offset by a funthmee reserve, which indicates that it does nofstite
available spendable resources even though it@rganent of net current assets.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, agdipment, are reported in the applicable governaher
business-type activities columns in the governmde financial statements. Capital assets aredéfby the
government as assets with an initial, individuadtaof more than $5,000 and an estimated usefulrifexcess
of two years. Such assets are recorded at higtarist or estimated historical cost if purchasedamstructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimatechdiaket value at the date of donation. The costsormal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to theevafuthe asset or materially extend assets livesnat
capitalized.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary gowent are depreciated using the straight line naetheer
the following estimated useful lives:

Year:
Infrastructur: 20-4(
Buildings 40
Improvements, other than buildir 5-2(
Machinery and equipme 5-2C
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. The Reporting Entity and Significant Accouting Policies (Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Ciomted)

Capital Assets (Continued)
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs of prapwiefund type property and equipment are charged t
expense, while renewals and betterments are dapial

Major outlays for capital assets and improvememts @apitalized as projects are constructed. Thg Ci
capitalizes net interest costs and interest eaasepart of constructing various enterprise fundegats when
material. No interest was capitalized during tharyended June 30, 2013.

Real Estate Held for Sale

As part of the City's commitment to economic depahent, the SEEDA may receive donated land from the
City to assist them in their mission. In the yesded June 30, 2011, the City donated land valted a
$1,171,000 to the SEEDA to use for a business parkhe year ended June 30, 2013, the City doratedi
valued at $1,628,641 to the SEEDA. Parcels vahte$ll52,000 have been sold through June 30, 20112, w
parcels valued at $2,647,563 still available foe sa

Collections

The City owns various works of art used to bealitffypublic spaces. These items are not considerbd held
for financial gain. All works of art are protectdapt unencumbered and preserved. The City dapisathese
works of art.

Compensated Absences

It is the City’'s policy to permit employees to anwulate a limited amount of earned but unused vaigatiick
and holiday leave benefits, which will be paidhe employees upon separation from the City. Iregawental
and fiduciary funds, the cost for these benefitseisognized when payments are made. A liabilitytfese
amounts is reported in governmental funds onhhé&yt have matured, for example, as a result of eyaplo
resignations and retirements. A long-term liapitf approximately $1,267,000 for accrued vacat&ick and
holiday leave, with accrued benefits as of June2BQ3, has been recorded as long-term debt, regiegdhe
City's commitment to fund such costs from futuregions. Proprietary funds accrue vacation ackllsave,
and the related benefits, in the period they areesh

Short-Term Financing

The City did not issue any tax anticipation notesise any other type of short-term financing far ylear ended
June 30, 2013.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. The Reporting Entity and Significant Accouting Policies (Continued)
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Ciomted)

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governméduatals. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders, ctsjtra
outstanding at year end are reported as restrctainfund balances and do not constitute expereditur
liabilities because the commitments will be reappiated and honored during the subsequent year.
Outstanding encumbrances at the end of fiscalgedrJune 30, 2013 were as follow:

General Fund $ 153,445
Special Revenue Fund 22,505
Water and Sewer Fund 38,167
Solid Waste Fund 19,935
Golf Fund 87,718

$ 321,770
Fund Equity

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund heda Fund balance is further classified as nordadae,
restricted, committed, assigned or unassigned. spmdable fund balance cannot be spent becautsefofm.
Restricted fund balance has limitations imposedragitors, grantors, or contributors or by enablegjslation
or constitutional provisions. Committed fund baans a limitation imposed by the City Council'sabd
through approval of resolutions, the Council’s ld@ghlevel of decision-making authority. Assigneshd
balances is a limitation imposed by a designeehefQity Council's board. Unassigned fund balance¢hie
general fund is the net resources in excess of gdrabe properly classified in one of the above tategories.
Negative unassigned fund balance in other govertahmds represents excess expenditures incukredtbe
amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to tposposes. Proprietary fund equity is classifieel $ame as
in the government-wide statements.

When both restricted and unrestricted resourcesaeaéable for use, it is the City's policy to ussstricted
resources first, then unrestricted fund balanceurthErmore, committed fund balances are reduced, fir
followed by assigned amounts, and then unassignmexiiats when expenditures are incurred for purptmes
which amounts in any of those unrestricted funeiee classifications can be used.

For the government-wide financial statements, osttipn are reported as restricted when constralaised on
net position are either: (1) Externally imposedcbgditors (such as debt covenants), grantorsribaiadrs, or
laws or regulations of the governments or (2) ingoobsy law through constitutional provision or eriradpl
legislation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftyrmith generally accepted accounting principleguiees

management to make estimates and assumptionsftbeit the reported amounts of assets and lialsliiad

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatstate of the financial statements and the tep@mounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting peActlal results could differ from those estimates.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 2. Cash and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In the case of deposits, this is the risk thahmeavent of a bank failure, the City’s deposits malbe returned
to it. State statutes require that the City's d#goin excess of the Federal depository insuranast be
collateralized.

In accordance with State statutes, the City maistdieposits at those depository banks authorizetido ity
Council. As of June 30, 2013, all of the City'spdsits including certificates of deposit classifiad
investments were covered by Federal depositoryramee or collateral held by the pledging bank'sttru
department or by its agent under joint custodyipgse Deposits in excess of federal deposit inszedimits
that were collateralized by the bank were $576#&:18f June 30, 2013.

As of June 30, 2013, the City had the followingdstments:

Investment Maturities

(In Years)
Fair 1-5 5-10 more than

Investment Type Value 1 year years years 10 years
U.S. agency mortgage back securities

securities - GNMA, interest rates

from 3.50% to 8.00% $ 78,594 $ - $ - $ 15 $ 78,579
U.S. sponsored entity obligations

FNMA, interest rates from

2.50% to 5.00% 15,784 - - - 15,784

$ 94,378 $ - $ - $ 15 $ 94,363

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes inragerates will adversely affect the fair valueaof investment.
The City’s investments are held in external podtegstment accounts. As a means of limiting itsasure to
fair value losses arising from interest rates;Gitg attempts to match its investment maturitiegitis expected
cash flow needs. With this investment focus, itmests are expected to reach maturity with limigaths and

losses.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuecounterparty to an investment will not fulfilsitobligation to
the holder of the investment. This is measuredhsy assignment of a rating by a nationally recagphiz
statistical rating organization. State law doet alow governments to invest in corporate bondiscks or
mutual funds and limits investments in commercigbgr to short term maturities (not greater than @ays)
and to the top ratings issued by nationally recogphistatistical rating organizations (Moody’s ata@n8ard and
Poor’s). Obligations of the U.S. Government antigations specifically guaranteed by the U.S. Gaweent
are backed by the full faith and credit of the Us®vernment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 2. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City does not have a formal policy that alldasor limits an investment in any one issuer tepacified
percentage of the City’s total investments. Adwife 30, 2013, the City had 83% of its investmeantSNMA
securities and 17% of the City’s investments warENMA securities.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments
For an investment, this is the risk that, in therg\of the failure of the counterparty, the Cityiwbt be able to

recover the value of its investments or collatsedurities that are in possession of an outsidy.pdihe City
does not have a formal policy for custodial creigk.

Note 3. Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

The City’s policy for estimating an allowance fonaollectible receivables is based on 0.5% of theeo
years’ service revenues in the proprietary funagsypThe City has determined that uncollectibleoants for
delinquent special assessments are immaterialthacgfore, no allowance has been required since 30n
2000. Allowances for uncollectible receivables asdollows:

Water and Sewer Fu $ 28,673
Solid Waste Fur 19,248
Mosquito Fun 93

Total $ 48.014
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 4. Individual Fund Interfund Receivables, Payables, Agdances and Transfers

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from tie thiat statute or budget requires to collect thethe fund
that statute or budget requires to expend themm@)e receipts restricted to debt service from ftheds
collecting the receipts to the debt service fundi@lst service payments become due, and (3) usstriared
revenues collected in the general fund to finaremous programs accounted for in other funds iroetance
with budgetary authorizations. Interfund transfdusing the year ended June 30, 2013 were as fellow

Transfers in Transfers out
Primary Government
Governmental Funds
General Fund $ 838,721 $ 487,548
Debt Service Fund 25,200 -
Special Revenue Fund 74,326 -
Total governmental activities - governmental funds $ 38,247 $ 487,548
Proprietary Funds - Business-type Activities
Water and Sewer Fund $ 2,086,316 $ 3,671,852
Solid Waste Fund 228,929 309,238
Golf Fund 122,347 11,510
Mosquito Fund - 3,600
Total proprietary funds - business-type activities $ ,432,592 $ 3,996,200
Component Units
Sheridan Area Water Supply Joint Powers Board $ 3,131,696 $ 2,023,787
Total Component Units $ 3,131,696 $ 2,023,787

$ 6,507,535 $ 6,507,535

In addition, during the year ended June 30, 20i&et were capital transfers related to the Cityiange in
account structure. These capital transfers asusii®d in Note 15.
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Note 5. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June€803 was as follows:
Balanct Balanct
June 30 Increase Decrease June 30
201z Transfers | Transfers Ot 201:
Governmental activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 5772623 $ - $ - $ 5772623
Construction in progress 9,935,054 6,351,760 - 16,286,814
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 15707, 6,351,760 - 22,059,437
Capital assets, being depreciated
Infrastructure 64,894,491 - - 64,894,491
Buildings 10,731,654 - - 10,731,654
Improvements, other than buildings 10,213,121 254,407 - 10,467,528
Machinery and equipment * 11,510,560 1,008,141 (120,276) 12,398,425
Total capital assets, being depreciated 97,349,826 1,262,548 (120,276) 98,492,098
Less accumulated depreciation for
Infrastructure 24,934,346 3,041,191 - 27,975,537
Buildings 4,948,785 247,051 - 5,195,836
Improvements, other than buildings 3,672,962 445,605 - 4,118,567
Machinery and equipment * 8,546,327 1,118,402 (120,276) 9,544,453
Total accumulated depreciation 42,102,420 4,852,249 (120,276) 46,834,393
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 55067 (3,589,701) - 51,657,705
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 70,85,0 $ 2,762,059 $ - $ 73,717,142

*The City transferred machinery and equipment fribie ambulance fund to the general fund with a basis
of $561,837 and accumulated depreciation of $4&1fa6the year ended June 30, 2013.

Assets acquired through capital leases of $2,488#2 included in machinery and equipment abovae T
related accumulated depreciation on those asseat$ivd47,524 as of June 30, 2013.

Depreciation expense for the governmental actwvities not been allocated to specific functiond.applicable
amortization expense is reported with depreciatimense.
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Note 5. Capital Assets (Continued)
Balanct
June 30 Balanct
2012 Increase Decrease June 30
as Restate Transfers | Transfers Ot 201:
Business-type activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 1,091,984 $ - $ - $ 1,091,984
Construction in progress 15,780,158 4,293,671 (8,451,104) 11,622,725
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 16,822,1 4,293,671 (8,451,104) 12,714,709
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 19,814,261 - - 19,814,261
Improvements, other than buildings 68,113,528 9,256,120 - 77,369,648
Machinery and equipment * 11,346,341 1,461,043 (790,770) 12,016,614
Total capital assets, being depreciated 99,274,13010,717,163 (790,770) 109,200,523
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 11,864,035 596,326 - 12,460,361
Improvements, other than buildings 15,859,799 2,961,028 - 18,820,827
Machinery and equipment * 8,564,817 793,455 (621,021) 8,737,251
Total accumulated depreciation 36,288,651 4,350,809 (621,021) 40,018,439
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 624985 6,366,354 (169,749) 69,182,084
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 796247, $10,660,025 $ (8,620,853) $81,896,793

*The City transferred machinery and equipment fiti ambulance fund to the general fund with a basts

of $561,837 and accumulated depreciation of $4&l{d6the year ended June 30, 2013.

Assets acquired through capital leases of $4,682:88 included in machinery and equipment abovae T

related accumulated depreciation on those assat$2y669,652 as of June 30, 2013.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/progrof the business-type activities of the primary

government as follows:

Solid waste fun $ 783,891
Water and sewer ful 2,467,506
Golf func 182,584
Mosquito funt 2,119
Accumulated depreciation transferred in from SAVESed 914,709

Total depreciation expense - business-type aieti $ 4,350,809

All applicable amortization expense is reportechwidépreciation expense.
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Note 5. Capital Assets (Continued)

Components Units

Capital asset activity for each component unitlieryear ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Capital asset activity for the Sheridan Area W&epply Joint Powers Board for the year ended JOn@@13,

was as follows:

June 30 Balanct
201z Increase Decrease June 30
as Restate Transfers I _Transfers Ot 201z
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Reservoir water shares $ 73,571 $ - $ - $ 73,571
Construction in progress 570,521 54,032 (570,521) 54,032
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 644,092 54,032 (570,521) 127,603
Capital assets, being depreciated
Water system 39,288,939 2,704,852 (2,874,127) 39,119,664
Total capital assets, being depreciated 39,288,939 2,704,852 (2,874,127) 39,119,664
Total accumulated depreciation 8,518,639 551,365 (914,710) 8,155,294
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 3(B000 2,153,487 (1,959,417) 30,964,370
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 31,43 $ 2,207,519 $(2,529,938) $31,091,973
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Note 5. Capital Assets (Continued)

Components Units (Continued)

Capital asset activity for the Sheridan Economid Bducational Development Authority Joint Powersaiigb
for the year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Balanc: Balanct
June 30 Increase Decrease June 30
201z Transfers II _ _Transfers Ol 201:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 426,500 $ - $ - $ 426,500
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 426,500 - - 426,500
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 3,075,397 - - 3,075,397
Improvements 2,316 - - 2,316
Total capital assets, being depreciated 3,077,713 - - 3,077,713
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings 201,823 76,885 - 278,708
Improvements 828 331 - 1,159
Total accumulated depreciation 202,651 77,216 - 279,867
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 2825, (77,216) - 2,797,846
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 38215 $ (77,216) $ - $ 3,224,346
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt

Special Assessment Bonds

Bonds were issued to finance the following spedaifiastruction projects. Special assessments wgied on
property owners to fund the retirement of the bonds

Special Assessment Bot Projec Componer
Special Improvement District Gravel Street Paving/Utility Replacement North of Fifth St.
Special Improvement District Street Paving/Utility Replacement N. Broadway
Special Improvement District Street Paving/Utility Replacement Comm. Park

The City is required to establish a debt retirem@wblving fund as guarantee for payment at 2%hef t
principal issued, but not to exceed 20% of thetantting bond obligation of the Districts. Gas aighrette
taxes are pledged to fund the debt retirement vevplfund. The revolving fund balance was $357,4800f
June 30, 2013.

Special improvement district bonds outstandingfakine 30, 2013, were as follows:

Balanct Balanct
June 30, 201 Issue Retirec June 30, 201

Special Improvement District 7

issued September 15, 1999, intere:

4.70% to 6.10%; matures September

2014, redeemable to the exten

assessment collections in dir

numerical order on any interestc = $ 45,000 $ - $ - $ 45,000

Special Improvement District 77, iss|

August 1, 2007, interest at 4.0%

5.0%; matures June 1, 20:

redeemable to the extent of assessr

collections in direct numerical order

any interest da 1,020,000 - (90,000) 930,000

Special Improvement District 78, iss|
September 15, 2012, interest at 0.75¢
4.15%; matures September 1, 2C
redeemable to the extent of assessr
collections in direct numerical order
any interest da - 640,000 - 640,000
$ 1,065,000 $ - $ (90,000) 1,615,000
Less current portic 70,000
Total Special Improvement Distr $ 1,545,000
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Special Assessment Bonds (Continued)
The debt service requirement for the special assa#sbonds as of June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Principa Interes Total
201¢ $ 70,000 $ 12,557 $ 82,557
201¢ 155,000 49,037 204,037
201¢€ 175,000 46,265 221,265
2017 175,000 41,326 216,326
201¢ 175,000 35,937 210,937
2019-202. 725,000 87,996 812,996
2024-202i 140,000 11,174 151,174

$ 1,615,000 $ 284,292 $ 1,899,292

The City has entered into two lease purchase agmtsmwith a financial institution for items and irapements
for the general fund. The general fund is respgmedor the payments on these leases. The dethisd
obligations under these agreements are as follows:

Obligation under capital lease of street sweepdjest to refunding claus
annual payments of $38,361 including interest 26%, expires September 20
collateralized by street swee $ 36,003

Obligation under capital lease of tax exempt eqeipinsubject to refunding clau

annual payments of approximately $82,800 basedpmoportional share of the tof

lease facility, including interest at 3.99%, expitgecember 201

collateralized by equipme 300,104
$ 336,107

Future minimum lease payments under these leaseragnts for the years ending June 30, are as fllow

201¢ $ 120,771

201t 82,662

201¢ 82,792

2017 82,788

369,013

Less amount representing inte (32,906)
Net present value of minimum lease payr $ 336,107

For the governmental activities, notes payablejtableases, claims, judgments and compensatetheéseare
generally liquidated by the general fund.
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Repayment of Sales Tax

During the year ending June 30, 2012, the Stat&/ydming discovered that sales and use tax in theuaimof
$759,332 was incorrectly reported and paid to thg. CThe City agreed to repay the State over Sy@aquarterly
payments beginning on September 30, 2012. The wiltnot charge interest on the repayment ofstéd&. The
general and capital facilities tax funds are resgae for payment of this debt. Minimum agreed mpayments are
as follows for the years ending June 30,

Repayment of Sales T

201¢ $ 189,833
201t 151,866
201¢ 151,866
2017 151,867
$ 645,432
Note Payable
The City has the following note payable:
Balanct Balanct
June 30, 201 Issuel Retirec June 30, 201
State Land and Investment Bo
loan, Mavrakis Recreational Po
Porous Pavement Project, Cle
Water SRF #126, granted 5(
principal forgiveness, due in ol
annual installment of $78,23
currently in constructior
amortization to be set one y
after completion of constructi $ - $ 1,905 $ - $ 1,905
$ - $ 1,905 $ - 1,905
Less current portic 1,905
3 .

This debt will be serviced by the general fund wvatie percent funds.
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Business-Type Activities
The City has the following notes payable in the 8aind Sewer Fund and Solid Waste Fund:

Balanct Balanct
June 30, 201 Issuel Retirec June 30, 201

Water and Sewer Func

State Land and Investment Board Ic

Miscellaneous Water Replacem:

Project, due in annual installments

$70,513, including interest of 2.5¢

due September 20 $ 773,936 $ - $ (52,066) $ 721,870

State Land and Investment Board ¢

Drinking Water SRF, due in anni

installments of $39,094, including intet

of 2.5%, due September 2( 428,507 - (28,000) 400,507

State Land and Investment Board I¢

Sugarland Utilities Projec

Drinking Water SRF #110, due in anr

installments of $111,191, includi

interest of 2.5%, due October 2( 1,671,886 - (74,870) 1,597,016

State Land and Investment Board I«

Sheridan North Main Proje

Clean Water SRF #10

due in annual installments of $61,¢

with 0% interest, due October 2( 1,239,218 - (61,961) 1,177,257

State Land and Investment Board I¢

North Main Project Street Reconstruct

Drinking Water SRF #10:

due in annual installments of $11,€

with 0% interest, due October 2( 233,885 - (11,694) 222,191

State Land and Investment Board I

North Main Project Street Reconstruct

Drinking Water SRF #10:

due in annual installments of $10,01

including interest of 2.59

due October 20: 155,922 - (6,520) 149,402

(Continued
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Balanct
June 30, 201

Issue(

Retirec

Balanct

June 30, 201

Water and Sewer Fund (Continued

State Land and Investment Board I¢

Upgrades at Water Treatment Ple

Drinking Water SRF #123, grani

50% principal forgiveness, due

annual installments of $154,4(

including interest of 2.5%, d

April 2032, currently in constructic

amortization will be finalized one ye

after completion of constructi $ -

State Land and Investment Board I¢

Upgrades at Water Treatment Ple

Drinking Water SRF #125, grant

50% principal forgiveness, due

annual installments of $35,983, includ

interest of 2.5%, due April, 20

currently in construction, amortizati

will be finalized one year afte

completion of constructic -

State Land and Investment Bo:

loan, Wyoming Park Improvemer

Phase 2, Drinking Water SRF #1.

granted 50% principal forgivene

due in annual installments of $25,6:

including interest of 2.5%, due Ap

2032, currently in constructic

amortization will be finalized one ye

after completion of constructi -

Sheridan Area Water Supply Jc

Powers Board, repayme

for construction loan, due in annt

installments of $25,771, includi

intrest of 2.5%, due December 2! -

Sheridan Area Water Supply Jc

Powers Board, repayment of E

Goose Water Pipeline Loan, due

annual installments of $69,320, includ

interest of 2.5%, due October 2( 950,529

$

276,902

64,369

176,364

483,265

(21,799)

(45,556)

$

276,902

64,369

176,364

461,466

904,973

5,453,883

1,000,900

(302,466)

6,152,317
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Balanct Balanct
June 30, 201 Issuel Retirec June 30, 201
Solid Waste Func
State Land and Investment Board I
Landfill Improvements Projec
due in annual installments
$304,140, including interest of 2.5'
due April 201t $ 1,925,438 $ - $ (254,434) $ 1,671,004
State Land and Investment Board I¢
Landfill Improvements Proje«
due in annual installments
$76,456, including interest of 2.5¢
due April 201 482,398 - (65,809) 416,589
2,407,836 - (320,243) 2,087,593
Total for all business-type activiti 8,239,910
Less current portic 754,320
$ 7,485,590
The debt service requirements for business-tygeities as of June 30, 2013 are as follows:
Principa Interes Total
201¢ $ 754,320 $ 169,926 $ 924,246
201t 771,194 153,051 924,245
201¢ 772,405 135,758 908,163
2017 681,086 118,438 799,524
201¢ 696,119 103,405 799,524
2019-202. 2,135,147 342,784 2,477,931
2024-202: 1,512,053 157,965 1,670,018
2029-203. 822,502 43,873 866,375
2034-203 95,084 5,856 100,940
Total amortizing del $ 8,239,910 $ 1,231,056 $ 9,470,966
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The City has entered into two lease purchase agnasmwith a financial institution for items and irmpements
for the golf course. The Golf Fund is responsifie the payments on these leases. The detailsadf a
obligations under these agreements are as follows:

Obligation under capital lease of an irrigationteys, subject to refunding clau

varying annual payments from approximately $86,80@00, with a final balloo

payment of $210,500, plus various interest rateseaing 4.87%, expires July 20

collateralized by irrigation syste $ 775,000

Obligation under capital lease of golf carts, sabje refunding claus

annual payments of $25,766 plus tax and intere2t1d%, with a final balloo

payment of $66,625, expires November 2017, colditexd by golf car 159,925
$ 934,925

Future minimum lease payments under these leaseragnts for the years ending June 30, are as fllow

201¢ $ 113,906

201¢ 111,731

201¢€ 114,506

2017 185,372

201¢ 93,475

Thereafte 585,414

1,204,404

Less amount representing inte (269,479)
Net present value of minimum lease paynm $ 934,925
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
The Solid Waste Fund also has the following capitase outstanding as of June 30, 2013:

Obligation under capital lease of caterpillar wHealer, subject to refunding clat
annual payments of $21,862 plus interest at 4.8&%,a final balloor
payment of $72,742, expires December 2014, codhred by wheel load $ 69,378

Obligation under capital lease of caterpillar lathdbmpactor, subject to refunding clat
annual payments of $91,307 plus interest at 3.2&%,a final balloor
payment of $189,707, expires July 2014, collateealiby landfill compact 183,735

Obligation under capital lease of tax exempt eqeipinsubject to refunding clau
annual payments of approximately $48,200 basedmngortional share of the to
lease facility, including interest at 3.99%, expitgecember 201

collateralized by equipme 174,797

Obligation under capital lease of caterpillar seragubject to refunding clause, ani

payments of $98,401, interest at 0%, expires Aug0st, collateralized by equipm: 196,801

Obligation under capital lease of landfill grindsupject to refunding clause, semian

payments of $44,992, interest at 0.90%, expirexMan18, collateralized by equipm 509,913

Obligation under capital lease of excavator, sutlifpcefunding clause, semiann

payments of $20,514, interest at 0.90%, expirexMan17, collateralized by equipm 157,628
$ 1,292,252

Future minimum lease payments under these leaseragnts for the years ending June 30, are as fllow

201¢ $ 539,867

201¢ 277,564

201€ 179,239

2017 179,224

201¢ 89,985

Thereafte 89,985

1,355,864

Less amount representing inte (63,612)
Net present value of minimum lease paym $ 1,292,252
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt (Continued)
The Water and Sewer Fund also has the followingaldpase outstanding as of June 30, 2013:

Obligation under capital lease of tax exempt eqeiptnsubject to refunding clau

annual payments of approximately $4,200 basedpmroortional share of the total le.

facility including interest at 3.99%, expires Dedemn2016, collateralized by equipm $ 15,099
$ 15,099

Future minimum lease payments under these leaseragnts for the years ending June 30, are as fllow

201¢ $ 4,137

201¢ 4,150

201¢€ 4,157

2017 4,189

16,633

Less amount representing inte (1,534)
Net present value of minimum lease paym $ 15,099

The following is a summary of the changes in thegkterm liabilities of the City for the year endihe 30, 2013:

Beginnin¢ Endinc Due Withir
Balanct Additions Reduction Balanct One Yea
Governmental activitie

Special Assessment Bor $ 1,065,000 $ 640,000 $  (90,000) $ 1,615,000 $ 70,000
Capital lease 382,366 55,518 (101,777) 336,107 106,438
Repayment of sales t 759,332 - (113,900) 645,432 189,833
Notes payab - 1,905 - 1,905 1,905
Compensated absen 905,363 913,851 (905,363) 913,851 572,114

Governmental activity long-term liabiliti $ 3,112,061 $ 1,611,274 $(1,211,040) $ 3,512,295 $ 940,290

Business-type activiti

Capital lease $ 1,884,987 $ 976,820 $ (619,531) $ 2,242,276 $ 587,970
Landfill closure liability 939,580 27,316 - 966,896 -
Notes payab 7,861,719 1,000,900 (622,709) 8,239,910 754,320
Compensated absen 346,249 352,692 (346,249) 352,692 314,024
Business-type activity long-term liabiliti $ 11,032,535 $ 2,357,728 $(1,588,489) $ 11,801,774 $ 1,656,314

54



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 7. Fund Equity

In order to meet future needs, the City Council ¢@mmmitted $1,472,929 of fund equity within the gei fund for
reserves and emergency needs.

No funds reported negative fund balance as of 30n2013.

Note 8. Defined Benefit Pension Plan

All full-time employees of the City are eligible tparticipate in the Wyoming Retirement System Pl&he
System”), a cost-sharing multiple-employer publwpioyee retirement system. All City employees, vane full-
time firefighters, participate in the Wyoming P&ilemen’s Retirement System. All sworn law enfaneat officers

of the City are eligible to participate in the Wyimign Law Enforcement Retirement Fund. The Systesn ptovides
death and disability benefits. Benefits are ehbtl by State statute. The System issues a pubhilable
financial report that includes financial statemeatsl required supplementary information. That regan be
obtained by writing to Wyoming Retirement SystenifthF Floor West, 6101 Yellowstone Road, Cheyenne,
Wyoming 82002 or by calling (307) 777-7691. ThéyQnade their total required contribution to thest®yn for the
years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 whicHs®269,358, $1,239,934, and $1,329,693, respégtivan
overview of the different plans follows.

Wyoming Retirement System

The System provides retirement benefits at age i&® early retirement options available. The Systatutorily
requires 14.12% of the covered employees' salatyetoontributed to the plan, of which is 7.00% #&dpby the
employee and 7.12% is paid by the City.

Effective September 1, 2013, the employer contidiouvill increase by 0.50% from 7.12% to 7.62%.

Wyoming Paid Firemen’s Retirement System

The System provides retirement benefits at agevi, early retirement options available. WRS regsi20.5% of
the covered employee’s salary to be contributedCity firefighters participating in the plan, of weh 2.5% is paid
by the employee and 18% is paid by the City.

Effective September 1, 2013, the employee conicbwyill increase by 0.225% from 2.5% to 2.725%.

Wyoming Law Enforcement Retirement Fund

The System provides retirement benefits at agend, early retirement options available. The Systequires
17.2% of the covered employee’s salary to be doumtied for Law Enforcement employees participatmghie plan,
of which 5.58% is paid by the employee and 11.62%aid by the City.
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Note 9. Landfill Post Closure and Monitoring Costs

State and Federal laws and regulations requireCibeto place a final cover on its landfill site ai it stops
accepting waste and to perform certain maintenandemonitoring functions at the site for thirty y&after closure.
Although closure and postclosure care costs wilpaiel only near or after the date that the landfiips accepting
waste, the City reports the estimated liability fbese closure and postclosure costs in the Soadt&\fund (an
enterprise fund) based on landfill capacity usedfasach balance sheet date.

The current operating costs of the landfill arecaetted for within the Solid Waste Fund of the Qiging the accrual
basis of accounting. The $966,896 reported asfilaitbsure and postclosure care liability at Jud@, 2013,
represents the cumulative amount estimated toleted on the use of 76% of the estimated capddheaite. The
City will recognize the remaining estimated costctdsure and postclosure care of $304,081 as timainéng

estimated capacity is filled. The calculationloé estimated liability has been based on what itlavoost to perform
all closure and postclosure care in 2013. Thenast of this liability may change based on a changeflation or

deflation, technology, or applicable laws or regjoles. At last year's rate of usage, the landfibuld have an
estimated remaining life of approximately 11 years.

The current year expenditure for landfill closurel @ostclosure care reflected in the Solid Wastelruas $27,316.

Note 10. Primary Government and Component Units Transactions

The City has business transactions with its compbuoaits throughout the year which are recordedrass
length transactions. A summary of these transasti® presented below:

Transactions with Sheridan Area Water Supply JointPowers Boarc

Payments to SAW

Big Goose Treated Water Pipeline Lt

The City owes $904,973 to SAWS for the City's portof a constructio

note. In the current year, the City made its imegli annual payments

$69,320 towards the payment of the I« $ 69,32(

Big Goose Water Treatment Plant Lt

The City owes $461,466 to SAWS for the City's portof a constructio

note. In the current year, the City made its iegli annual payments

$25,771 towards the payment of the I« 25,77

Due to Component Un

The City and SAWS are working together on a comsima project called
called Conventional WTP Upgrades. The City is adstéming the
current construction. Upon the completion of theigct the Cit

will eventually own 28.7% of the asset and SAWS wivn 71.3%

Total Conventional WTP Upgrades construction ingpess $ 732,14
recorded on the City's boc
Assets that will belong to SAWS at comple’ 71.3% 522,01¢
Total due to component u $ 522,01¢
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Note 10. Primary Government and Component Units Trasactions (Continued)

Due from Component Un
in prior years, the City contributed to a fundschigy SAWS to be used
purchase additional water should it ever becomesszry. These fun
have continued to be held for such a contingel
City funds held by SAWS for additional water pursé: $ 2,727,43
Interest earned to date on held fu 27,09¢ $ 2,754,528

The City and SAWS are working together on a projadied
Conventional WTP Upgrades. The City has a loah thie Office of Stat:
State Land Investments (OSLI). SAWS is respondini¢or 19%.

of the total loan amout

SAWS 19% portion of the amount incurred to 64,36¢

Payments due to the City for reimbursement of shawerhead cos 494,36

Total due from component u $ 3,313,26
Note 11. Budgetary Compliance

For the year ended June 30, 2013, the followingedjiures exceeded their final departmental budigtsis a
violation of Wyoming State Statute §16-4-108.

Budget Expenditure Over Expenditure
City Council $ 58,828 $ 59,317 $ (489)
Municipal Court 118,751 124,697 (5,946)
Human Resources 178,060 183,532 (5,472)
Police 16,700 27,592 (10,892)
Streets - 309 (309)
Building: Permits/Inspections 365,059 371,624 (6,565)
Waste Collection 931,409 944,165 (12,756)
WW Treatment 1,003,516 1,015,264 (11,748)
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Note 12. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of lossestedldo torts; theft of, damage to, and destructibassets and
natural disasters. The City manages their compebe property risk management by participatingha
Wyoming Association of Risk Management Propertyutaace Joint Powers Board (“WARM?”). The City's
general liability insurance is provided by partatipn in the Local Government Liability Pool (LGLPWhile
participants in WARM could be assessed additionaants in the event that the pool consumes itsvesgthe
LGLP manages this risk by receiving an annual a@bassessment of funding needs. The LGLP haverne
requested a reserve call on its members. All mslhagement activities are accounted for in eacl am
appropriate. Settled claims resulting from thésksrhave not exceeded commercial insurance coeénagny
of the past three fiscal years.

All heavy equipment owned by the City is coveredabplanket equipment policy. This blanket poligsh
coverage limits, which could be exceeded in thékahi event that the City and the other jurisdingpwhich
participate in WARM, were subject to a major disastIn an effort to control potential losses, Qigy has
implemented a risk containment policy, which pr@ddfor mandatory use of seat belts and hard hats,
extraordinary caution on the part of employeesahdr preventive measures.

The City also participates in two other risk mamaget programs: Workers' Compensation Act and
Unemployment Compensation Act.

Wyoming Statute 27-14-101 created the Wyoming Wicrk€ompensation Act, which is administered as an
enterprise fund by the State of Wyoming. All enyels within the State of Wyoming are participanitshis
plan unless the employer elects not to be coveneléruthe plan. This Act requires the City to abti#bility
coverage for payment of benefits to employees élrglated injuries and diseases through the Wsrker
Compensation Fund. This Act provides general ptimte from suits filed by employees against theyCiThe
City makes monthly payments to the Department oplBgment, State of Wyoming. This amount is based o
salaries and a split rate between hazardous anthamardous positions. Amounts paid by the Citihio State
for Workers' Compensation during fiscal year 20 E8enapproximately $36,000.

Wyoming Statute 27-3-101 created the Unemploymemh@nsation Act. This Act requires the City to fiasy
cost of actual claims incurred. Changes in tharzas of claims liabilities during fiscal year 20d4r3d 2012
were as follows for the City's participation in tHeemployment Compensation Act Program:

Fiscal Year Ende Fiscal Year Ende

201z 201z
Unpaid claims, beginning of ye $ - $ -
Incurred claim 21,00: 70,83¢
Claim paymeni (21,001) (70,838)
Unpaid claims, end of ye $ - $ -
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 13.

The City is required by the Department of Environtaé Quality to monitor a landfill site for possibl
contamination (Note 9). Should contamination bected in the future, the City may be responsiblesbme
or all of the cleanup costs.

Construction Commitments

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the @ity committed to fund various projects in the apipnate
amounts of $9.3 million in the capital projectsdufrom future appropriations.
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Original
Contract Expended Remaining
Project Name Amount To Date Commitment
Primary government
Governmental activities
General Fund
City Service Center Relocation $ 500,000 $ 331,056 $ 168,944
WYO Theater 2,000,000 660,993 1,339,007
Sheridan Commercial Park 2,248,511 2,020,290 228,221
Hot Mix Plant Conversion 130,000 95,573 34,427
Downtown Parking Development 50,000 49,162 838
W. 5th Street/Mydland Road 300,000 88,191 211,809
WYO/Park Street 8,291,187 4,283,199 4,007,988
Lewis Street Bridge & Pathway 1,150,000 412,620 737,38
North Main Rebuild 5,125,000 4,986,051 138,949
High Tech Business Park 1,150,000 1,110,960 39,040
West Downtown Phase llI 2,800,000 2,123,568 676,432
Mavrakis Pond Paving 250,000 6,407 243,593
Yellowtail Extension 1,250,000 3,681 1,246,319
North Sheridan Interchange 3,250,000 48,284 3,201,716
319 Funding 488,500 66,779 421,721
Total governmental activities 28,983,198 16,286,814 ,69@,384
(Continued)



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 13. Construction Commitments (Continued)
Original
Contract Expended Remaining
Project Name Amount To Date Commitment

Business-type activities
Water and Sewer Fund

WYO/Park Street $ 2,282,855 $ 1426595 $ 856,260
North Heights Neighborhood 334,834 15,130 319,704
North Main Rebuild 5,000,000 4,942,779 57,221
High Tech Business Park 1,500,000 1,464,232 35,768
Conventional WTP Upgrades 6,014,096 732,144 5,281,952
South Side Sewer Inceptor 1,800,000 1,764,530 35,470
West Downtown (Jeff/Dow) 1,110,000 1,003,183 106,817
North Sheridan Interchange 700,000 3,124 696,876
North West Water Loop 2,031,000 145,786 1,885,214
Fluoride Addition 500,000 13,905 486,095
Yellowtail Extension 258,000 - 258,000
Mydland Road Sewer Crossing 3,250,000 64,621 3,185,379
Water Salesman 75,000 34,040 40,960
Total Water and Sewer Fund 24,855,785 11,610,069 5328
Solid waste fund
Landfill Cell 9 2,521,000 12,656 2,508,344
Total solid waste fund 2,521,000 12,656 2,508,344
Total business-type activities 27,376,785 11,622,725 5,794,060
Total primary government $ 56,359,983 $ 27,909,539 $ 28,450,444

Contingencies

There are several lawsuits pending against the f@ityarious reasons. The outcome and eventuailitiato

the City, if any, in these cases is not known & time; however, management and legal counsehatgi the
potential claims against the City, not covered risurance, resulting from such litigation would nwdterially
affect the basic financial statements of the City.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 14. Accounting Standards Issued, But Not Implemented

As of June 30, 2013, the Governmental Accountiram&irds Board has issued the following standardshwh
the City may implement in its next fiscal year.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statememt &8, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement NwafTssued to improve accounting and financiabtapug

by state and local governments for pensions. db amproves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial supporpfemsions that is provided by other entities. Statement
results from a comprehensive review of the effestass of existing standards of accounting and diahn
reporting for pensions with regard to providing idem-useful information, supporting assessments of
accountability and interperiod equity, and creatadglitional transparency. Management has not adedl its
assessment of the effect of implementing this guida

Note 15. Change in Accounting Policy and Capital Transfers

In 2013, the City implemented a new chart of act®wand a new fund structure, which is a change in
accounting policy. This change required transteesnveen capital accounts in order to allocate cdgre
beginning equity to the new activities and fundifie effects of the change as of July 1, 2012 avevstbelow:

Capital Capital
transfer in transfer out
Primary government
Governmental Funds
General Fund $ - $ 62,243
Capital Projects Fund 369,780 -
Special Revenue Fund 290,068 -
Lodging Tax Fund - 420,736
Public Safety Fund 140,787 -
Community Promotion Fund - 335,242
Bike Trail Project Fund 36,059 -
Health and Human Services Fund - 3,747

$ 836,694 $ 821,968

Proprietary Funds - Business-type Activities

Water and Sewer Fund $ - $ 52,189
Ambulance Fund 37,463 -

$ 37,463 $ 52,189
Total primary government $ 874,157 $ 874,157
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 16. Prior Period Adjustment

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the City auddd their account and fund structure. This chargulted
in a simplified structure which brought to lightveeal items that had not been identified and resdrid prior
years. The detail of the effect of these change®nt year financial statement of this adjustnigiats follows:

Genere
Func
The ambulance fund was closed on July 1, 2012 agdkts were to be transfel
to the General Fund. The transfer included fiasskets with a net book value
$130,671 and capital leases with a principal baaf$55,518. These assets |
been written off and not appropriately transfel $ 75,153
$ 75,153
Solid Wast
Func
The annual capital lease payment on the Cater@fléH was not posted to t
principal balance for the year ended June 30, ZDi.resulted in liabilities bein
overstated and net position understated. This ad@rg increases net positi
Total increase to beginning net position in the®Waste Fun $ 80,048
$ 80,048

Water and Sew
In 2009, the City and SAWS completed a 20 inch viiaee project. The City capitalize Func
the entire project, but should have only capitali28.7% of the completed proje
and SAWS the remaining 71.3%. The prior periodistiipent decreases net positi
and removes land with a cost of $548, 155 and irgr@nts with a net bo
value of $6,997,80 $ 7,545,959

The City is paying SAWS for its portion of the BBpose Treated Water Pipel

Loan. The City has made payments since 2010, duiekpensed the payments

had not recorded the liability. This adjustmeetrases net position and records

the liability. 950,529
Total decrease to beginning net position in theaNand Sewer Ful $ 8,496,488
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June 30, 2013

Note 16. Prior Period Adjustment (Continued)
Sheridan Are
Water Supply Joil
Powers Boar
In 2009, the City and SAWS complete the Big Goosealied Water Pipeline proje
SAWS did not record their share of the total costhe project. The prior peric
adjustment increases net position and fixed assethe cost of $1,008,743 a
accumulated depreciation of $21,4 $ 987,249
In 2012, SAWS recorded a portion of the cost efBig Goose Water Treatm:
Plant, however the project was not completed tistihl year 2013. This adjustm
decreases net postion and fixed as (309,669)
In 2013, SAWS recorded the share of interest incdugeto the City of Sheride
on the balance held by SAWS for potential futuréewvaurchases. This adjustrr
increases SAWS liabilities and decreases net pa: (21,674)
$ 655,906

Note 17. Subsequent Events

On August 20, 2013, the City transferred approxatyab acres of land with a carrying value of $580,@o the
Sheridan Economic and Educational Development Aitthdoint Powers Board.

On December 15, 2013, the City entered into a ahlghse agreement for the purchase of a CatarpiBak
wheel loader. The amount of the caterpillar is45380 and will be paid in annual installments 06351

beginning November 14, 2014.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND

CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

Taxe:!

Licenses and perm

Intergovernment:

Fines and forfeiture

Charges for servic

Net investment incon

Contribution:

Miscellaneous revenu
Total revenue

Expenditure

Curren

General administratic

Health and welfai

Public safet

Public work:

Parks and recreati

Capital outla

Debt service - princip
interes

Total expenditure

Deficiency of revenue

over expenditurt

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance witt
Final Budge
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount: (Negative
$ 10,918,243  $ 10,918,243 $ 10,718,419 $ (199,824)
673,000 673,000 793,023 120,023
- - 3,809 3,809
217,000 217,000 207,689 (9,311)
446,667 401,667 371,647 (30,020)
45,000 45,000 12,673 (32,327)
- 31,000 36,698 5,698
90,000 90,000 37,318 (52,682)
12,389,910 12,375,910 12,181,276 (194,634)
2,468,843 2,859,521 2,442,549 416,972
88,153 109,153 97,332 11,821
4,978,120 5,055,420 4,933,634 121,786
3,080,274 3,238,774 2,818,935 419,839
419,815 419,815 440,347 (20,532)
2,138,500 4,124,400 1,609,896 2,514,504
84,800 84,800 101,775 (16,975)
11,600 11,600 11,379 221
13,270,105 15,903,483 12,455,847 3,447,636
(880,195) (3,527,573) (274,571) 3,253,002
(Continued

See accompanying note to required supplementasyniation
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND

CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND (COTINUED)

Other financing sources (us
Capital transfel
Operating transfers
Operating transfers ¢

Total other financing
source

Net change in fund balanc

Fund balance - beginning
year, as previously report

Prior period adjustme

Fund balances
beginning of year, as resta

Fund balance - end of yt

Year Ended June 30, 2013

See accompanying note to required supplementasyniation
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Variance witl
Final Budge
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount (Negative
- $ - $ (62,243) % (62,243)
816,510 816,510 838,721 22,211
(230,200) (245,200) (487,548) (242,348)
586,310 571,310 288,930 (282,380)
(293,885) (2,956,263) 14,359 $ 2,970,622
5,870,851 5,870,851 5,870,851
(75,153) (75,153) (75,153)
5,795,698 5,795,698 5,795,698
$ 5,501,813 $ 2,839,435 $ 5,810,057



CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CAPITAL TAX FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Revenue
Taxe:
Total revenue

Expenditure
Curren
Public work:
Capital outla
Total expenditure

Excess of revenue
over expenditurt

Net change in fund balanc

Fund balance - beginning of yi

Fund balance - end of y«

Variance witt
Final Budge
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount: (Negative
$ 2,800,000 $ 2,800,000 $ 2,769,871 $ (30,129)
2,800,000 2,800,000 2,769,871 (30,129)
- 220,000 43,478 176,522
1,400,000 3,951,400 3,079,724 871,676
1,400,000 4,171,400 3,123,202 1,048,198
1,400,000 (1,371,400) (353,331) (1,078,327)
1,400,000 (1,371,400) (353,331) $ 1,018,069
1,512,944 1,512,944 1,512,944
$ 2,912,944 $ 141,544 $ 1,159,613

See accompanying note to required supplementasyniation
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SPECIAL REVENUEUND
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Variance witt
Final Budge
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual Amount: (Negative
Revenue
Taxe: $ 1,832,000 $ 1,832,000 $ 2,019,400 $ 187,400
Intergovernment; 1,015,000 6,131,025 3,082,944 (3,048,081)
Net investment incon 1,500 1,500 804 (696)
Contribution: 1,051,111 1,052,111 872,059 (180,052)
Miscellaneous revenu 11,000 61,000 80,732 19,732
Total revenue 3,910,611 9,077,636 6,055,939 (3,021,697)
Expenditure
Curren
General administratic 523,430 548,130 530,224 17,906
Public safet 61,540 196,540 192,366 4,174
Public work: 46,400 46,400 42,298 4,102
Capital outla 4,767,511 7,774,755 3,882,374 3,892,381
Total expenditure 5,398,881 8,565,825 4,647,262 3,918,563
Excess (deficiency) of revent
over expenditurt (1,488,270) 511,811 1,408,677 896,866
Other financing sourc
Capital transfel - - 290,068 290,068
Operating transfers 80,000 80,000 74,326 (5,674)
Total other financing
source 80,000 80,000 364,394 284,394
Net change in fund balanc (1,408,270) 591,811 1,773,071 $ 1,181,260
Fund balance - beginning of yi - - -
Fund balance - end of v $ (1,408,270) $ 591,811 $ 1,773,071

See accompanying note to required supplementasyniation
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Basis of Budgeting

Budgets

Annual budgets are adopted on the modified acchadis for all governmental funds. Encumbered
appropriations are reappropriated in the ensuiag ydudget.

Legal spending control for City monies is at theattment level. The City Council may amend thedaidfter
it is appropriated using the same procedures nagess approve the original budget at the departrieel.
During the year, no significant appropriations weeeessary. Management monitors expenditurescafetary
line item levels within each fund to enhance theoaating control system and may amend the budgttisat
level as long as the department level budget isitaiaied.
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70



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account forguledeom specific revenue sources, which are requ be
accounted for separately and used for specificqaa®. These funds were combined as of July 1, d0&2o
the change in accounting policy and capital tramssfe

Lodging Tax Fund - accounts for receipts and aidisifunded with lodging taxes.

Public Safety Fund - accounts for revenue and ifietivspecifically identified to improve public stf. It
includes the following projects and activities: éiPublic Education, Department of Justice grantso8l
Resource Officer, Bulletproof Vest, Canine Dog, UETPP funds, DUl Overtime, 403 Demonstration
Seatbelt grant, Alcohol Inspection grant, SpeedEeiment grant and Video Camera grant.

Community Promotion Fund - accounts for speciabnexes received for specific community bettermerits.
includes the following projects and activities: lleg Car, Sculpture, Park Land Dedication, Landmark
Commission, Development Impact Fee, Senior Centgriginent grant, and the Sheridan Housing Action
Committee.

Bike Trail Project Fund - accounts for revenue arpenses associated with maintaining and buildiegBike
and Napier trails.

Health and Human Services Fund - accounts for rtevamd activities specifically identified to impeypublic
health and welfare. It includes the Tobacco PreerrGrant.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FNDS
June 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Public Community Bike Trail
Lodging Tas Safety Promotior Projec
ASSETS Func Func Func Func

Total asse $ - $ - $ - $ -

LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES
Total liabilities - - - -

Fund Balance
Total fund balance - - - -

Total liabilities ani
fund balance $ - $ - $ - $ -
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Health an Total
Human Nonmajo
Service: Governmentz

Func Fund:
- $ R
- $ R
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, ANDHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Special Revenue Funds

Public Community Bike Trail
Lodging Tas Safety Promotior Projec
Func Func Func Func
Revenue
Total revenue $ - $ - $ - $ -
Expenditure
Total expenditure - - - -
Excess (deficiency) «
revenues over expenditur - - - -
Other financing sources (us
Capital transfel (420,736) 140,787 (335,242) 36,059
Total other financin
sources (use (420,736) 140,787 (335,242) 36,059
Net change in fund balanc (420,736) 140,787 (335,242) 36,059
Fund balances (deficit)
beginning of yee 420,736 (140,787) 335,242 (36,059)
Fund balances - end of yi $ - $ - $ - $ -
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Health ani Total
Humar Nonmajo
Service Governmentz
Func Fund:
R $ R
(3,747) (582,879)
(3,747) (582,879)
(3,747) (582,879)
3,747 582,879
- $ -
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NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
Enterprise Funds are used to account for activitieieh the City provides and for which the users enrarged
fees. The following funds are the nonmajor prapangfunds for the City:

Ambulance Fund - accounts for receipts and aa#witf the City’'s ambulance and EMT activities. sThind
was transferred to the general fund as of July(l,22due to the change in accounting policy andtahpi

transfers.
Mosquito Fund - accounts for revenues and actyvdisociated with mosquito abatement activities.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - NONMAJOR PRRRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2013

ASSETS
Current asse
Casl
Service receivables, r
Due from other governmel
Total current asse

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreci
Total asse

LIABILITIES
Current liabilitie:
Accounts payab
Total current liabilitie

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related
Unrestricte
Total net positio
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Ambulanct Mosquitc
Func Func Total
- $ 136,990 $ 136,990
- 3,103 3,103
- 39,914 39,914
- 180,007 180,007
- 36,076 36,076
- 216,083 216,083
- 863 863
- 863 863
- 36,076 36,076
- 179,144 179,144
- $ 215,220 $ 215,220




CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANES
IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Ambulanct Mosquitc
Func Func Total
Operating revenu
Service fee $ - $ 18,782 $ 18,782
Other operating incon - 131,995 131,995
Total operating revenu - 150,777 150,777
Operating expens
Other operating expen: - 129,925 129,925
Depreciation expen - 2,119 2,119
Total operating expens - 132,044 132,044
Operating incorr - 18,733 18,733
Other financing sources (us
Capital transfel 37,463 - 37,463
Operating transfers ¢ - (3,600) (3,600)
Total other financing sources (us 37,463 (3,600) 33,863
Change in net positic 37,463 15,133 52,596
Net position (deficit) - beginning of ye (37,463) 200,087 162,624
Net position - end of ye $ - $ 215,220 $ 215,220
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARI
Year Ended June 30, 2C

Federe Pass Throuc
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor"
Grantor/Program Title Numbe Numbe Expenditure
U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Serv
Passed through the Wyoming State Forestry Div
Cooperative Forestry Assistal 10.66¢ 11-DG-11020000-0¢€ $ 11,305
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Ser 11,305
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Developi
Office of Community Planning and Developrr
Passed through the Wyoming Business Co
CDBG - State-Administered CDBG Clut
Community Development Block Gr: 14.22¢ - 57,905
Total U.S. Department of Housing a
Urban Developme 57,905
U.S. Department of the Interior National Park Sen
Passed through Wyoming State Parks & Cultural Rese
Outdoor Recreation Acquisition, Development andhRilac 15.91¢ LWCF #56-0086 29,508
Total U.S. Department of the Interior Natiol
Park Servic 29,508
U.S. Department of Justi
Direct Awarc
Bureau of Justice Assistar
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Progr 16.60° - 1,964
Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prewm
Passed through the Wyoming Associal
of Sheriffs and Chiefs of Poli
Enforcing Underage Drinking Laws Progr 16.72° - 15,423
Total U.S. Department of Justi 17,38
U. S. Department of Transportat
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Transjiam
Highway Planning and Construction Clus
Highway Planning and Constructi 20.20f  STP-E-SH 0.00 TL120( 24,90¢
Highway Planning and Constructir 20.20¢ SR1200i 29,52¢
Highway Planning and Constructir 20.20¢ CM 0.00 CM1101 109,90:
Total Highway Planning and Construction Clu 164,33!
Highway Safety Clust
State and Community Highway Sat 20.60( HS02012-40 3,78¢
State and Community Highway Sat 20.60( HS02013-40 12,15(
State and Community Highway Saf 20.60( HS02013-402-| 2,00(
Total Highway Safety Clust 17,93¢

(Continued

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expegslitd federal awards
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINED)
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federe Pass Throuc
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Grantor"
Grantor/Program Title Numbe Numbe Expenditure

U. S. Department of Transportation (contint
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Transamtécontinuec

Alcohol Open Container Requireme 20.60° HS4101! $ 4,900
Alcohol Open Container Requireme 20.60° HS02012-154A 5,05(
Alcohol Open Container Requireme 20.60° HS02013-41 6,12¢
Alcohol Open Container Requireme 20.60° HS02013-410-Vt 9,41¢
Total Alcohol Open Container Requireme 25,49!
Total U.S. Department of Transportai 207,76t

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Office of téf
Passed through the State Land and Investment
Capitalization Grants for Clean Wa

State Revolving Func 66.45¢ CWSRF #12 3,809
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Envirotah
Quality
Nonpoint Source Implementation Gre 66.46( - 66,779

Passed through the State Land and Investment
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Wat

State Revolving Funi 66.46¢ DWSRF #12. 457,150
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Wat
State Revolving Funi 66.46¢ DWSRF #12! 106,270
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Wat
State Revolving Funi 66.46¢ DWSRF #13! 291,967
Total Capitalization Grants for Drinking Wal
State Revolving Fun 855,387
Total U. S. Environmental Protection Age 925,975

U. S. Department Ener
Passed through the Wyoming Business Co
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservatic
Block Grant Program - Recovery / 81.12¢ ADO0730120000000001: 40,261
Total U.S. Department of Enet 40,26

U. S. Department of Health and Human Sen
Passed through the Wyoming Department of Transjiam
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Prc
of Regional and National Significar 93.24: PF< 2,673
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Ser 2,673

U. S. Department of Homeland SecL
Direct Awarc

Homeland Security Grant Progr 97.06° 10-GPD-SHE-LP-HLE1 17,85
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Sect 17,85’
Total federal awarc $ 1,310,637

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expegslitd federal awards
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL ARDS
June 30, 2013

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of fé@devards (Schedule) includes the federal granviggtf

the City of Sheridan, Wyoming for the year endedel80, 2013 and is presented on the cash basis. isTa
basis of accounting which differs from generallgegmed accounting principles in the United StafeSnoerica.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this Schadale differ from amounts presented in or used in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Note 2. Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds

Certain costs reported in the current schedule xpleeditures for federal awards for DWSRF#123 and
DWSRF#125, projects funded by Capitalization Grafots Drinking Water State Revolving Funds were
incurred in fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 thraligie 30, 2012. These were pre-planning costsienel
identified to and reimbursed by the State of Wyamimder the terms of their grant agreement withGye of
Sheridan, Wyoming. These pre-planning costs wegy $71 for DWSRF#123 and $78,693 for DWSRF#125.
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mcll PORTER, MUIRHEAD, CORNIA & HOWARD

(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants)

123 West First Street  Suite 800 P.O.Box 2750 Casper, Wyoming 82602  (307) 265-4311 Fax (307) 265-5180

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTINGND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMNTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITHGOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Sheridan, Wyoming

We have audited, in accordance with the auditiagddrds generally accepted in the United Statégradrica

and the standards applicable to financial auditstaioed inGovernment Auditing Standardssued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the foianstatements of the governmental activities, ibhsiness-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presentgdponent units, each major fund, and the remgifund

information of the City of Sheridan, Wyoming, asawid for the year ended June 30, 2013, and thiedetetes
to the financial statements, which collectively @ise the City of Sheridan’s basic financial stadaets and
have issued our report thereon dated March 27,.2@4dr report includes a reference to other auslitaino

audited the financial statements of the SheridasaANater Supply Joint Powers Board, as describemlin
report on the City of Sheridan’s financial statetsenThis report does not include the results ef dther
auditor’s testing of internal control over finarlaiaporting or compliance and other matters thatraported on
separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the finacstatements, we considered the City of Sheridan,
Wyoming's internal control over financial reportiigternal control) to determine the audit proceduthat are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purposexpfessing our opinions on the financial states)amit not

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on thectiffeness of the City of Sheridan, Wyoming's ima&r
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opintnthe effectiveness of the City of Sheridan, Wiyagis
internal control.

A deficiency in internal controgéxists when the design or operation of a contoalsdnot allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing theisigned functions, to prevent, or detect andecgrr
misstatements on a timely basis.material weaknesis a deficiency, or combination of deficiencigsjriternal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibiliat a material misstatement of the entity’s ficial
statements will not be prevented, or detected amtected on a timely basis. gignificant deficiencyis a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iteimal control that is less severe than a matesmakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those chérgith governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was foe fimited purpose described in the first paragraplhis
section and was not designed to identify all deficies in internal control that might be materiabknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitatiodsying our audit we did not identify any deficigin internal
control that we consider to be a material weaknékswvever, material weaknesses may exist that havbeen
identified. We did identify a deficiency in intetincontrol, described in the accompanying schedfifendings
and questioned costs as item 2013-001 that wedmms be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance abouthehéhe City of Sheridan, Wyoming's financial staents
are free of material misstatement, we performedste$ its compliance with certain provisions of &w
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, ngoli@me with which could have a direct and matesféct
on the determination of financial statement amauhtewever, providing an opinion on compliance vttibse
provisions was not an objective of our audit, aocbadingly, we do not express such an opinion. rEselts of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliamcetleer matters that are required to be reportedkeun
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Sheridan, Wyoming's Response to Finding

The City of Sheridan, Wyoming's response to thedifigs identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questionstscoThe City of Sheridan, Wyoming's response nats
subjected to the auditing procedures applied iratidit of the financial statements and accordingly,express
no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrile gbope of our testing of internal control and cliemge and
the results of that testing, and not to providepimion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intdroontrol or on
compliance. This report is an integral part ofamit performed in accordance wi@overnment Auditing
Standardsn considering the City of Sheridan, Wyoming’s im& control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose

At luihad) G % i)
Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard

Certified Public Accountants

Casper, Wyoming
March 27, 2014
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRANID REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Sheridan, Wyoming

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited the City of Sheridan, Wyoming’s pliamce with the types of compliance requirememtscdbed
in theOMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplemémat could have a direct and material effect dy 6f Sheridan,
Wyoming’s major federal program for the year endade 30, 2013. City of Sheridan, Wyoming's magatefal
program is identified in the summary of auditor&sults section of the accompanying schedule ofirfgsl and
questioned costs.

The City of Sheridan, Wyoming's basic financialtstaents include the operations of the Sheridan Aldier
Supply Joint Powers Board, which did not receivdefal awards greater than $500,000 and are natdedlin the
schedule during the year ended June 30, 2013. aGdit described below, did not include the operatiof the
Sheridan Area Water Supply Joint Powers Board esetttomponent units engaged other auditors to rpeitioe
audit.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with thguirements of laws, regulations, contracts, arahtgr
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ctamge for the City of Sheridan, Wyoming’s majodéezal
program based on our audit of the types of compaequirements referred to above. We conductedudit

of compliance in accordance with auditing standayeiserally accepted in the United States of Ametica
standards applicable to financial audits containgdovernment Auditing Standardssued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A;18udits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 requied tve plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliatitgh&itypes of compliance requirements referreabituve
that could have a direct and material effect onagonfederal program occurred. An audit includeanaining,

on a test basis, evidence about City of Sheridagporihg’'s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considezegssary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonabléstfas our opinion on compliance for the major feade
program. However, our audit does not provide alledptermination of City of Sheridan, Wyoming's
compliance.

85



Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Sheridan, Wyoming
Page 2

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Sheridan, Wyoming complidd, all material respects, with the types of comuptie
requirements referred to above that could haveeridand material effect on its major federal paogifor the
year ended June 30, 2013

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of City of Sheridan, Wyoming is respolesfor establishing and maintaining effective int control
over compliance with the types of compliance regpaints referred to above. In planning and perfognour audit
of compliance, we considered City of Sheridan, Wym's internal control over compliance with the dgpof
requirements that could have a direct and mateffaktt on the major federal program to determire dhditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumsgfarethe purpose of expressing an opinion on ciampé for the
major program and to test and report on internatrob over compliance in accordance with OMB Cieruh-133,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opiniontioa effectiveness of internal control over compie
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on tHeativeness of the City of Sheridan, Wyoming’s in&d control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complian@xists when the design or operation of a contraro
compliance does not allow management or employieethe normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, nomg@mnce with a type of compliance requirement déderal
program on a timely basis. #aterial weakness in internal control over comptiaris a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal controleoxcompliance, such that there is a reasonabléhildgshat
material noncompliance with a type of compliancguieement of a federal program will not be preventar
detected and corrected, on a timely basis.sighificant deficiency in internal control over cphanceis a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, ieimal control over compliance with a type of coiapte
requirement of a federal program that is less s\vhan a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attenbgrihose charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over comptienwas for the limited purpose described in thet fir
paragraph of this section and was not designedenwtify all deficiencies in internal control ovesropliance
that might be material weaknesses or significafitiéacies. We did not identify any deficienciesinternal
control over compliance that we consider to be metereaknesses. However, material weaknessesexialy
that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control osempliance is solely to describe the scope oftesting of
internal control over compliance and the resultshat testing based on the requirements of OMBUEircA-
133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable &y other purpose.

Yty Mushad) (s, % )

Porter, Muirhead, Cornia & Howard
Certified Public Accountants

Casper, Wyoming
March 27, 2014
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Section | — Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes
Noncompliance material to financial statements di®te No
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified
that are not considered to be material

weaknesses? No

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for
major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are requiredé¢o b
reported in accordance with section 510 (a)
of Circular A-133? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster

66.468 Capitalization Grants for Drinking Watéat® Revolving Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINDIE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

A. Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control
YB 2013-001 Significant Deficiency

Criteria;

The Wyoming Uniform Municipal Fiscal Procedures A¥.S. Title 16 Chapter 4) requires each municipali
to propose a budget, hold public hearings on tldgéuand then adopt a legally restricted budgetfgiven
year or biennium. The budget may be amended afpeiblic hearing by a resolution of the governiogyin a
public meeting. Amounts expended by the municipatiust be equal to or less than the adopted findget.

Condition:

The City overexpended its final budget in 8 ofbtsdget categories. There was no public hearingndwe
unexpended appropriation to these departments/foeftsre the end of the fiscal year and therefdnesé
expenditures were unauthorized by the constituehthe City. A process of reviewing the City's lyadary
compliance during the fiscal year is needed to rensompliance with Wyoming budget statutes.

Recommendation:

In our judgment, management and those charged gatlernance need to understand the importance ®f thi
communication. A process of reviewing the Citylsdgetary compliance during the fiscal year is ndetde
ensure compliance with Wyoming budget statutes.

Response:
The City will establish a process for reviewing tbigy’s Budgetary compliance during the fiscal ye&uring

our budget revisions, we will review all budgeteggiries to make sure they have the budget to ¢beeyears
projected expenditures.

B. Compliance

There were no compliance findings.

Section lll - Federal Award Findings and QuestionedCosts

None.
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CITY OF SHERIDAN, WYOMING

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Significant Deficiency in Internal Control
SA-2012-01

U.S Department of Energy
Passed through the Wyoming Business Council
CFDA No. 81.041 — State Energy Program

Condition:
The City did not determine that contractors usethis program were not identified as suspendedebaded
parties.

Management Response:
The City will review the suspension and debarmeqtirements and establish control procedures aicgbyd

Status:
Corrected
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